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* (1005) 

Clerk of Committees (Ms. Patricia Chaychuk­
Fitzpatrick): Order, please. I call the Standing 
Committee on Industrial Relations to order. I have before 
me the resignation of Ed Helwer as Chairperson of this 
committee; therefore, the position of Chairperson is 
vacant. 

Are there any nominations for the position of 
Chairperson? Mrs. Hammond. Mr. Patterson . 

Mr. Allan Patterson (Radisson): I nominate Parker 
Burrell. 

Madam Clerk: Mr. Burrell has been nominated. Are 
other any further nominations? If not, Mr. Burrell, you 
have been elected Chairperson. 

Mr. Chairman: Have we got a quorum? 

Madam Clerk: Yes. 

Mr. Chairman: Okay. Order, please. This morning the 
Standing Committee on Industrial Relations will resume 
hearing public presentations on Bill 31, The Labour 
Relations Amendment Act. 

If there are members of the public who wish to check 
to see if they are registered to speak to the committee, 
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the list of presenters is posted outside of the committee 
room. If members of the public would like to be added 
to the list to give a presentation to the committee, they 
can contact the Clerk of Committees and she will see 
that they are added to the list. If we have any out-of­
town presenters or any presenters who are unable to 
return for subsequent meetings, please identify yourself 
to the Clerk of Committees and she will see your names 
are brought forward to the committee as soon as 
possible. 

Just prior to resuming public presentations, did the 
committee wish to indicate to members of the public 
how long the committee will be sitting this morning? 

An Honourable Member: 12:30? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Edwards? 

Mr. Paul Edwards (St. James): Mr. Chairperson, I 
wonder if I might suggest that we schedule until noon 
at this point. I do not know if we have presenters to 
carry through to noon. 

An Honourable Member: Oh, yes. 

Mr. Edwards: I hear the Member for Churchill (Mr. 
Cowan) saying we do. Then I would certainly suggest 
that noon will be an appropriate time to take a break.­
(interjection)- 12 noon, I am sorry. 

Mr. Chairman: What is the will of the committee? -
(interjection)- Okay, it is the will of the committee that 
we will go as close to 12 as possible. We are not going 
to cut somebody off or anything like that. 

We have Robert Ziegler, No. 55. Is it the will of the 
committee to listen to Robert now? 

An Honourable Member: Agreed . 

Mr. Chairman: Agreed. Okay, Mr. Ziegler. 

* (1010) 

Mr. Robert Ziegler (Private Citizen): My name is 
Robert Ziegler. I am with the United Food and 
Commercial Workers. I am a business agent and have 
been so for the last 10 years. 

Mr. Chairman: Could you pull the microphones down 
a bit so we can hear you , please? 

Mr. Ziegler: Okay. My name is Robert Ziegler. I am 
with the United Food and Commercial Workers. I am 
a business agent, a union rep. I have been so for 10 
years. In addition to looking after the membership, I 
have negotiated several contracts throughout that 
period. I have been involved in all the Westfai r 
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negotiations since 1981. I am involved in the 
negotiations on an executive level. As well , I have 
personally been on strike for six months in 1978. 

I am here to speak both on behalf of the Manitoba 
Food and Commercial Workers and as a citizen today. 
I would first like to deal with some comments made 
by Mr. Andy Smith last Friday which I think deserves 
some clarification. I was not here on Friday, but I 
understand he made two comments that I think are 
very important for this committee to be clarified on. 
The first point was that he said there is nothing to worry 
for this committee, that there will be no strike at Westfair 
Foods this year. The second point is that there is a 
letter from Andy Smith ensuring that the parties are 
going to use final offer selection and that there will be 
no strike. I say to you, both of those comments are 
false. 

I have handed out two documents to the Clerk which 
I think you will have. One of them is a copy of the 
letter, the only letter that does exist, and the other one 
is a copy of Section 41 of the collective agreement. I 
would like to first deal with Section 41 of the agreement . 
Clearly in the Westfair contract, the only way that FOS 
exists with Westfair Foods is if this legislation exists in 
Manitoba. 

I draw your attention to Article 41.04 which states: 
The parties agree that in the event either party invokes 
final offer selection in accordance with the provisions 
of the Manitoba Labour Relations Act. Clearly it can 
only be read one way. We only have FOS if it exists in 
the legislation. If it does not exist, we do not have 
access or recourse to that procedure to settle our 
dispute. That goes on farther in the last paragraph on 
page 41, which is again confirming. Again, in the event 
that any legislated provisions appear to conflict with 
the process set out herein , the parties hereby affirm 
their desire and intent to use this process in lieu of 
any such legislative process. Again, only if there is 
legislative process. Mr. Edwards, you are a lawyer. I 
am sure, looking at those two sections-I think we 
even had a discussion on Saturday, you agreed that 
only if there is legislation is that an opportunity for the 
parties to resolve their negotiations. 

• (1015) 

The next I want to deal with is the letter from Mr. 
Evans, the handwritten document. This is the only letter 
that exists in regard to FOS between the parties. There 
is a typewritten version that was signed a few days 
later, a month later, but it is the same wording. Clearly, 
all this letter says is two things: one, that if we go to 
final offer selection we will not compare it to the 
Manitoba Safeway Agreement. Secondly, before we 
apply for FOS, there will be a meeting between Andy 
Smith, who is the industrial relations director, and Cliff 
Evans, our Canadian director. If anything this does not 
speed up the process; it slows it down. It says we cannot 
apply for final offer selection until after there is an 
impasse, after Andy Smith and Cliff Evans meet, and 
then seven days later. In fact , this letter may prevent 
us from using FOS, depending on the timing of the 
meetings between those two parties. 

I went further than that. I contacted Cliff Evans on 
Friday. He was, in fact, in town on Thursday for an 
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arbitration hearing. I checked with him and he said, 
there is no such letter. This is the only letter between 
the parties and there is no agreement to use final offer 
selection regardless of what happens. In fact , he 
confirmed that he does not even have that power to 
bind the parties. He assists, he is a great individual 
and he has assisted the party in a lot of negotiations, 
but he does not have the power to bind Manitoba 
employees to some deal. He has other duties. That is 
not what he does, but he acknowledged there is no 
other letter out there. 

In regard to the legislative process, we had some 
concerns during this whole process. We received two 
legal opinions from two of the most respected labour 
lawyers in this province, Al McGregor from Simkin 
Gallagher and Mel Myers from Cliff Evans. Both of those 
legal opinions, looking at our contract, looking at the 
legislation, looking at all the documents, confirm that 
both parties lose their right to FOS if the legislation is 
gone. Beyond that, the legal opinion is that both parties 
still have their legal right to strike or lockout. The 
employer can lock us out again if they want under the 
contract. So they still have access. It is not a bind ing 
process. 

It is important to remember that the last strike at 
Westfair was actually started as a lockout first and then 
a strike afterwards. I have heard the comment from 
some of the committee Members here, especially the 
Liberals, that they have not seen evidence that FOS 
works. Well, I assure you that if you repeal this 
legislation, what you are probably going to have 
evidence of is the effect of that repeal. I mean, very 
quickly, you will see it in Westfair Foods. You will see 
it in a lot of other employers also, but you will see the 
effect of repealing the legislation very quickly. 

Andy Smith was here on Friday, I understand. He 
also made another comment. He said: we are not a 
bad employer. You heard a lot of laughs from people 
in the background when some of these comments have 
been made by other speakers, or questions of people, 
of them not being a bad employer. In the last two years 
Westfair Foods has hired 2,485 employees-a turnover 
of 2,500 people. They only employ 1,500 people in the 
plant. They are averaging 30 to 40 percent turnover 
per year. In some categories, it is higher; it is as high 
as 60 percent a year. I mean, they treat their employees 
like shit, and I apologize for that language, but that is 
the way it is. They do not want their employees to stay. 

I heard another comment, and I will touch on it a 
little later, that Westfair likes FOS. Well, that is true. 
We negotiated FOS with Westfair Foods back in 1981 
before the legislation was here. Westfair Foods was in 
favour of the legislation. They have it in other provinces. 
That changed back in 1985 when they requested to 
have it removed from the contract. That was their 
proposal. What is the difference then from now? We 
used to have good relations with Westfair. In the 
early'80s we had good relations with Westfair Foods. 
They were not a bad employer, but something changed. 
They figured that they were now established in the 
Province of Manitoba. Now was the time to sort of bash 
this union and destroy the strength of our membership 
and take away some of their rights. 
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• (1020) 

Not a bad employer? 1987, when the strike was 
settled, Westfair Foods signed a letter, the back of the 
kind of letter of agreement describing some job duties 
for one group of classifications. It says, the job functions 
shall be as follows, and the above parties agree to be 
bound by this wording in the event of any dispute in 
the collective agreement. I mean, clearly, it says they 
agree to be bound by it. 

Well, Friday, this hearing that Andy Smith and Cliff 
Evans were in, was the 19th day of a grievance, an 
arbitration hearing, that dated back to January of 1988, 
because the company is saying, yes, we signed that 
agreement, but that is not what we meant and we are 
not going to live up to it. I mean, 19 days of hearing­
it is not completed-a year and a half later. They sign 
something and they do not intend to live up to it. I 
wonder what is going to happen with Andy Smith's 
words about intending to use FOS this time. After it 
is repealed, I wonder what he is going to say after it 
is repealed . Is he going to change again? 

Those are my comments on behalf of Westfair Foods. 
Now I would like to speak as a private citizen and as 
a union representative, because as I have said, I have 
been involved in several negotiations and I know the 
process-how it works. It sounds good in theory, how 
negot iations have a lot to do wi th logic, reason , 
understanding and caring, but that is not the way 
negotiations usually work. As well, I was on strike for 
six months in 1978 with a subsidiary of Safeway, 
Empress Foods, production bakery. I walked that picket 
line for six months, supported my wife who was going 
to university, worked at night, and saw a lot of things­
saw some violence on both parties that is inevitable 
in a long strike. 

As well as seeing the effect on myself personally in 
the hardship and the money that I lost during that strike, 
I learned a little bit about the process, because if you 
all recall, Safeway settled their strike after two months 
in 1978, but our strike continued on for an additional 
four months. It continued on for one reason, both parties 
did not have a way to settle it. They could not save 
face. 

FOS, I have no doubt in my mind, would have ended 
that strike four months early, would have saved everyone 
a lot of hardship . That was a successful strike in our 
view. There was not a single employee who went back 
to work in that plant. We were solid. We were united. 
The employer did not get back to full production levels 
but neither party had a way to save face. They had a 
bitter Safeway strike so they left us to decide sort of 
the final trenches in the battle for both of them to say 
they had thei r victory. 

I have been involved in a lot of other strikes. I was 
involved with Blackwoods Beverages in Dauphin when 
I used to look after that area. That was an 18-month 
strike. An 18-month strike that ran from a December 
till May, through two winters. It is not like picketing out 
here in the city where you get some protection from 
the wind. That plant, it is a soft drink plant, is in the 
middle of the highway. Those employees had to picket 
through the winter and out in the wind . I had one of 
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the worst meetings, if you will, that I ever had to have 
which was to go out to those employees and say, 
listen-and none of them went back to work that 
originally went out, after 18 months of walking that 
picket line, freezing, of standing up for their rights­
I am sorry we cannot get you a contract, we cannot 
get you back to work because all the employer has to 
do is go out, and there were only 13 or 15 employees 
in the plant, find 12 new employees to work there. 

They were set and bent on destroying the union, 
taking away Manitobans' right to have a collective 
agreement. There was nothing we could do. They were 
there, they walked the line but they could not stop it. 
Eighteen months of their life, 18 months of hardship 
on them, their families, the community. 

• (1025) 

I was involved in another strike with the Canadian 
National Institute for the Blind which was also one of 
my hardest strikes to deal with. You do not know what 
it is like for a blind individual to be on strike. We had 
employees with their dogs. These employees have a 
routine where they get to know their workplace, they 
get to know their routine. It takes a lot to readjust that 
but we had for I think about 6 weeks the strike on 
Portage Avenue with these employees, not because the 
union was making outrageous demands for money or 
anything else but rather because the employer wanted 
to get out of the business. They could not be bothered 
with trying to provide jobs for their employees. They 
would rather let it close down, put these people out 
of work and less work for their management team. We 
finally settled that strike because of public support but 
that strike should have been avoided and would have 
been avoided if FOS was there at that point. 

We had another strike that I was involved with on a 
limited basis which was Shoppers Drug Mart, at the 
Kildonan Place mall, a group of employees, almost 
entirely women, most either single or single mothers, 
most young. That was another hard strike because I 
guess it is indicative of the kind of membership that 
we have. We have a lot of younger members, a lot of 
part time staff which these were and a lot of women. 
It was hard for them because they were in a shopping 
mall so they could not even picket directly their 
employer. They had all these accesses to get around. 
It lasted 10 weeks. Again the employer 's only desire 
in that situation was, we do not want a union at any 
of the other Shoppers Drug Marts so let us get rid of 
it here. 

I have seen some other strikes. I have walked their 
picket lines. I have been involved. I saw the Burns' 
strike back a number of years ago that lasted four 
months. We have heard some of the people talk about 
it. Again I saw the effect on the individuals, but I saw 
the effect on our society too . I mean there was violence 
there. I saw one guy's foot run over by a truck. If you 
think about the cost aspect of it, I saw the police lined 
up, 25 in a row, every day for a period and escorting 
the strikebreakers in and the strikebreakers out. The 
cost on our society for that strike is something that 
could have been avoided if we had final offer selection. 
I saw a strike at Manitoba Sugar where my father-in-



Tuesday, M arch 6, 1 900 

law was i nvolved. I saw him hit by a semi-trailer because 
the guy d i d  not want to s low down for the picket l ine. 
I saw that violence, another one that cou l d  have been 
avoided if  f inal offer selection  was t here. 

Superior Cheese, another of our contracts that I was 
i nvolved with ,  were on strike for just over a year. A 
situation where, nearer the end, every t ime we would 
make a proposal the company would change their  last 
offer. We woul d  say, we wi l l  take your last offer, and 
t hey woul d  change i t .  We said ,  we w i l l  take your next 
offer; they woul d  change it. They d i d  n ot want us .  We 
l ost that one too. 

I had mentioned a couple of these strikes that are 
out of town. One of the b ig  p luses for f inal  offer 
selections, in Manitoba, in the City of Winnipeg, people 
have more options. I f  you lose a job in Manitoba, i f  
you g o  on str ike and you lose a job or you d o  not get 
back ,  or whatever-you get f ired . There are other jobs.  
When you are i n  Dauphin and you have been on str ike 
for 1 8  m onths, you d o  not have the same options. There 
are not the n u m ber of jobs you can go to.  You become 
b lackbal led because they do not want to h i re you, 
because you stand for a u n i on.  Souris Superior Cheese 
was even worse. A smaller community, those employees 
suffered g reatly for the m oney they lost.  They also 
suffered for their future employment and their future 
treatment.  

* ( 1 030) 

I cannot s it here and bel ieve anyone that has been 
through a strike or anyone that real ly  knows anything 
about it  would want to take away or  prevent those 
situations. Sure people have said ,  wel l ,  we have not 
seen the Westfair  l ike we d i d  in'87 -partial ly because 
of FOS, but also, because just the cycle of t ime.  You 
do not always get the bad strikes every year. The 
i mportant t h ing, that in t hose 72 appl icat ions before 
the Labour Board , and I th ink  that is  a s ignal  we shou ld 
look at, every t ime it  has been approved , working  
Man it obans voted that ,  yes, I want FOS. I f  Manitobans 
were not in favou r  of FOS, they wou l d  be voting against 
i t  when it  came in front of them on that bal lot the 
Labour Board puts out .  

They sai d ,  yes,  I want it .  I have also heard some 
people say that employers are not i n  favou r  of FOS. 
I do not agree with that. Pr ior to the legis lation coming 
into M anitoba, we have negotiated FOS in a number 
of col lective agreements. We sti l l  have it  with the co­
operatives across the province. We h ad four recent 
decisions under f inal offer selection with four d ifferent 
selectors, and the process continues. The co-ops are 
confirmed and bel ieve in f inal  offer selection. They may 
not get u p  here and make a p resentation because they 
do not have to .  They bel ieve in it; t hey have negotiated; 
t hey agreed to it. 

1 97 7 ,  E m p ress Foods ,  a s u b s i d i ary of  Canada 
Safeway-we negotiated final offer selection. We used 
it; we went to final offer select ion .  There again, another 
decis ion,  that is  five other decisions we have had.  Even 
Westfair  Foods ,  back in 1 98 1  when they fi rst opened 
up their SuperValu stores, negotiated the process. They 
continued in' 83 ,  cont inued in '85.  l t  was removed in'85 
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at the request of the employer because of a s ign of 
the t imes of where they wanted to go .  They did not 
want to leave that fair chance out there. They wanted 
a strike. They f igured -and I th ink  we surprised them 
i n ' 8 7  -there is  no way those part-t ime employees are 
going to  go on strike. Their view of an employee is, 
they are productive from six months to  two years,  and 
after that they are a burden on  their company. 

I heard that at a presentation once from one of their­
the person who looks after the front end. They have 
a big computer printout that monitors the items the 
person r i n g s  t h r o u g h ,  m o n i t o r s  the n u m b e r  of 
emp loyees i n  their  l ine. They said to us that a l l  their  
research shows that the most effective t ime for an 
employee is six m onths to  two years. After that ,  they 
are no longer in their  pr ime. They figu red that people 
woul d  not go out i n ' 87 ,  so that is why in'85 they removed 
i t .  

Wel l ,  I ta lked about us  having those five other 
decisions, four, when the co-op wanted Empress Foods. 
I w i l l  be honest; the selector chose the company's 
proposal in a l l  live of those situations. Now, we h ave 
had two final offer selections u n der the leg is lative 
process, and they selected our choice once, i n  Uniclty, 
and selected the employer's o nce. So we are six for 
the employer 's  selection and two for our select ion ,  but 
that is not six losses and two wins. We won ,  the 
employer won in each one of those cases- m aybe 
Uni c i t y  we w i l l  leave o u t - because t h e  p a r t i e s  
negotiated sincerely and g o t  most o f  the material off 
the table. The final offer selection just resolved the 
ones the parties could not agree to. 

I n  Vista Park Lodge, one of the situations we won, 
t here was only one issue left. l t  was the pension p ian.  
We h a d  nego t i ated even t h e  cents per h o u r, but 
ph i losophical ly we could not agree. We wanted i t  to be 
the union p lan, the Canadian Commercial Workers' 
Indu stry Plan; the employer wanted their plan, l ike a 
pr ivate-run RASP, a m oney purchase plan, and that 
was al l  the selector had to choose from. l t  worked . 
Both parties won because they had negotiated a l l  the 
other items. l t  works. 

N ow, you have heard i t  from a lot of people, and I 
h ave heard it from someone else, that they had not 
heard or had not learned anyth ing new from the union.  
I t h ink it was the Liberals said that they had not heard 
anyth ing new from the union bosses. Wel l ,  here is a 
process that is d ifferent to an alternative to strikes. 
H ow cou ld  anyone take away that alternative? 

I am here to speak on behalf of the people who are 
not here and who have gone through i t .  I feel sorry for 
the Richard Naherny who got up at th is  pod i u m  and 
told his story about the suffering  he has gone through .  
H e  admitted that he was found gu i lty of contempt of 
court for saying , what, scab shopper, and interfering 
with the f i lming of a private conversation. I feel sorry 
for everyth ing he has been through ,  being terminated , 
being in the arbitrat ion process, being transferred to 
another store and h aving h is  hours cut.  I real l y  feel 
sorry for h im .  His situation could have been avoided. 

I feel sorry for Kathy Kraychuk ,  who was here and 
told you the story of how she was burnt i n  the chest . 
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I was there that day. I mean, can you i magine th is 
respect-! mean, strikes can have this effect on people. 
lt was a customer. l t  can turn the most meek and mi ld  
mannered person; they wi l l  l ose control. What would 
d rive an ind ividua l  to take his c igarette and butt i t  out 
i n  a women's chest? 

That i s  what strikes do t o  people, and that is only 
one t h ing.  We had about 30 or  4 0  d i fferent cases of 
assault .  We had women knocking cameras, do ing 
damage to our-like, we were f i lming some th ings. M i ld  
mannered people-str ikes d o  that to them. They d o  
i t  to our members too. I am n o t  go ing to say they d o  
not d o  it  to  o u r  members. O u r  members h ave done 
th ings that they are sorry for, and they have paid the 
price, but  i t  could have been avoided. You can help i t  
be avoided. 

I am sorry for the innocent bystander who was shot 
in the Westfair str ike. H is  only cr ime was being out late 
and h aving to  go to the washroom in the back lane. 
We coul d  h ave avoided f inal  offer select ion ,  we could 
h ave avoided that man being paralyzed for l ife, i f  f inal  
offer selection had been i n  effect. H ow you can say to 
his fami ly, I d o  not care,  we have to take away that 
balance? I do not understand. 

The people that I am real ly here to talk for today 
are the  ones that are not here. The reason they are 
not here is  they h ave not been t hrough a str ike yet. 
They do not k n ow what is  coming, but I g uarantee you 
it will come. We do not h ave to look - M anitoba is  not 
u nique. Westfair Foods,  seven or  eight years ago no 
one wou l d  have expected a str ike l i ke that,  but let us 
look around. Let us  look at the G ainers in Alberta. Let 
us look at G riffin Steel in o u r  own h istory in M anitoba. 

Let us look at the-1 d o  not know who the next 
employee is  go ing to  be that i s  go ing to i nvolve us  i n  
a very b i tter strike, a very violent str ike, a very costly 
strike that could be avoided. H ow we can sit here and 
say we d o  not  care about  those people? That  is  who 
I am here for and on their  behalf. They woul d  l ike to 
be here if  they knew what they are g oing to  h ave to 
go through in the future. O n  their  behalf  I say that FOS 
has to stay. FOS i s  good for M anitobans, al l  M anitobans, 
not just the 35 percent who are in un ions. I mean we 
have heard this f igure, that it  only affects one-th i rd  of 
the M anitobans. FOS is  good for a l l  of us. 

lt is  g ood enough for our  d octors. We have the Leader 
of the L iberal Party ( Mrs. Carstairs) who supports 
arbitration for the medical association. l t  is good enough 
for the pol ice. l t  i s  good enough for some health care 
workers and some of the teachers and everyth ing else, 
why i s  it not good enough for everybody so that they 
can have some just ice and d ignity? A l l  it d oes is b ring 
a level p laying field and that d oes not exist in a lot of 
situations. lt d oes not exist in small-town M anitoba. lt 
d oes not exist in the unit where there is only 12 or 15 
people and the employer can hire replacement workers. 
lt does not exist and it restores it. 

Two last points I wou l d  like to cover and that is I 
look at and I wonder about the reason for the change 
in final offer selection. I h ave not seen anyone other 
than the Chamber of Commerce and one o r  two 
employers asking for the repeal of final offer selection. 
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M a n i t o b a n s  are  n o t  d o i n g  i t .  I f  you  l o o k  at t h e  
presentations that a r e  here, I have not seen i t  in the 
news, I have not seen i t  to the people I have spoken 
to. They have not sai d ,  th is  is a bad piece of legis lat ion, 
we h ave to get rid of it. That is not what is happening. 
Manitobans l ike th is legislat ion and those who have no 
comment have not experienced it, but if  they knew 
what it was a l l  about woul d  be here and we woul d  have 
more than 1 1 0 speakers, we would be overdone with. 

* ( 1 04 0)  

The last comment I would l i ke to ta lk  about is I noticed 
a comment from the Liberals looking at a t hree-year 
tr ia l  period. I appreciate the shift, I appreciate their 
rea l i z i n g  t h at maybe t h i s  is not bad leg is la t ion .  I 
appreciate that M r. Rose, M r. Patterson,  M r. Edwards 
and your Party, but i f  you are going to  make a change 
you have to make i t  longer, not shorter. 

We heard a l l  k inds of comments that we have not 
seen the results and you have looked at the statistics 
and everyth ing  else. G iving i t  an addit ional 1 0  months,  
I do not see that. You have a five-year period that is 
i n  there. Let us  let i t  run at that. If  you want to make 
a change, let us lengthen it. Adding an extra 10 months, 
that is  not really going to g ive i t  a c hance to real ly  
p rove what i t  can d o. Manitobans have a leg islat ion 
that i s  designed t o  run for  five years, let us  let  it  run 
five years. I f  you want to  make any change, make it  
l onger; let i t  work. 

Those are my comments. Any questions that you 
h ave I woul d  be more than p leased to answer. 

Mr. Steve Ashton (Thompson): I too was interested 
in what has been talked about in the paper today. A 
1 0-month , I d o  not know,  a reprieve, remembering that 
a l l  the 1 0  months wi l l  d o  is just delay the t ime i n  which 
f inal  offer selection was go ing to d i sappear. I wou l d  
rather see a longer period ,  q u ite frankly, b u t  w e  had 
suggested i f  you look at the bare minimum that a four­
year period wou l d  be the absolute bare mini m u m ,  
recognizing that i n  1 0  months,  by the t i m e  y o u  even 
get the d ata for t h is year the B i l l  i s  passed through. 
I just want to focus in on that. As you sai d ,  i t  is  the 
first t ime the Liberals have i n dicated there is  any value 
to  th is leg islation; that is  a fair ly d ramatic  sh i ft. You 
are suggest ing to this committee that a three-year 
sunset, in  th is case 10 months, not even 10 months,  
we are less than that now, n i ne months and a b it  i s  
really not  go ing  to  be satisfactory to g ive f inal offer 
selectio n  a chance. 

Mr. Chairman: M r. Ziegler. Am I pronouncing your name 
correctly? 

Mr. Z iegler: Yes, that is r ight. Quite clearly, 10 months 
is  not enough. When you look at the legislation first 
coming in, in 1988, the bu lk  of negotiat ions were 
ongo ing  and d i d  not have the access to it, and that is 
why you had Unicity Taxi. 

Unicity Tax i ,  that strike in 1 988, went on for about 
70 some-odd days. The only reason i t  occurred was 
because those negotiations were ongoing ,  so that is ,  
i f  you wi l l ,  a str ike that looks bad for FOS because it  
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went for 70 d ays. I f  f inal  offer selection  had been 
available that strike wou l d  not be t here. You have to 
d i scount that f irst year of statist ics because a lot of 
negotiat ions were ongoing and you could not get i t .  I 
wil l  be honest, there was some trepidation by parties 
the first year to  use f inal offer selection  because they 
were not qu ite sure what would h appen, what k i n d  of 
select ions wou l d  come out ,  who wou ld  be appointed 
and everyth ing  else. The first year i s  n ot of much use 
to look at. We start l ook ing  at 1 989, add i ng another 
1 0  months is not enough ,  if you really want to see how 
it works,  at least f ive years.  I personal ly woul d  l i ke  to 
see i t  longer. 

Mr. Ashton: Well ,  I too h ave been somewhat puzzled 
by the three-year suggestion ,  q u ite frank ly, the M i n i ster 
and  ourselves could not proclaim th is  unt i l  next year. 
lt is not out of l ine with legislat ion , it was i ntroduced , 
really it is not much d i fferent than a straight repeal; 
often we repeal legislat ion . You are saying very clearly 
that you want to see a far longer period than 10 extra 
months,  and you feel that it is absolutely vital i f  we are 
going to g ive any k ind  of proper analysis to i t ,  that we 
have c o n s iderab ly  more exper ience  t h a n  j u st t h e  
addit ional 1 0  months,  w h i c h  on ly gives us three years 
out of the orig ina l  p lanned five. 

Mr. Ziegler: Clearly we need m ore t ime.  I have been 
through the negotiat ion process and everyth ing else. 
I say I want six, I could probably l i ve with four, but 
three just i s  not enough.  

I f  I look at it ,  i t  seems l ike  i t  i s  a process to  get us  
by  the next provincial  elect ion and then  we wi l l  deal 
with i t  afterwards ,  that i s  what i t  a lmost appears to 
me. 1t is  good leg i slat ion ,  let us  let i t  get a chance to 
run .  

Mr. Ashton: l t  is interesting you talked in the bargain ing 
vernacular when we suggested four years; that was in  
essence our f ina l  offer. We felt that was as far as we 
could go. We d i d  not l ike to have to even reduce the 
per iod from f ive years. I bel ieve f ive years, especial ly 
g iven the fact that i t  i s  work ing .  I f  it was not work ing ,  
f ine; but i t  i s  clear. 

We bent over backwards to the Member for St. Vital 
( M r. Rose), to  try and g ive it a chance, that i s  why we 
suggested the four. We would  much prefer five, but 
that is  what you try and d o  t o  save someth ing  that is  
good leg i s l at io n .  To s u g gest the 10 m o n t h s  n ow,  
someth ing which the Conservative M i n i ster of Labour 
(Mrs. Hammond)  herself coul d  announce as a matter 
of G overnment pol icy th is  m i nute, real ly I am surprised . 
I m ight  have expected the 1 0  months fro m  the M i n ister 
of Labour, and I do not mean this as any crit ic ism by 
knowing her perspective on th is  B i l l ,  but I am rather 
surprised . 

As I sai d ,  it is i nterest ing  when you look at the 
vernacular of negotiat ions here because I d o  not know 
if the L iberals are look ing for a way of saving face. If  
they are looking for a way of recogniz ing the fact t hat 
they were wrong in their  i n it ia l  cr it ic isms, and I bel ieve 
this committee has proven fundamentally that they were 
wrong ,  there has to be a better way. I would l ike to 
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a s k  y o u ,  y o u  h ave been t h r o ug h  t h e  s i t u at i o n s ,  
d i sc u ssi o n s ,  n e g o t i at i o n s; c a n  y o u  m a k e  s o m e  
suggest ions,  perhaps to the Liberals w h o  are trying t o  
f i n d  some way o f  saving  face, to admit they were wrong? 
Do you h av e  any s u g g e st i o n s  to t h e m ,  p er h a p s  
suggest ions that go  beyond what I have been attempting 
to d o  to get them to recogn ize that this has to  be g iven 
m ore of a chance? 

M r. Zieg ler: C learly, and I h ave seen the shi ft ,  they 
have d iscovered t h e  way t h e m se l ves to save t his 
legislat ion .  That is  from l istening to working Manitobans. 
l t  i s  not l i stening  to  me and i t  is  not l isten ing  to the 
union representative. To say that,  I sat there through 
th is  ·process and I spoke to  the woman who almost 
l ost h er k i d s; I spoke to  the one whose family broke 
down; and I spoke to those. C learly, they can say, 
M a nitobans l i ke  th is .  

I have seen that from the q uest ions and I appreciate 
that fro m  the L iberals. I have seen the q uestions you 
have g iven to our  members and to the other members 
in the  last l i tt le whi le .  They have reflected that you now 
understand what th is  legis lat ion  can prevent. I th ink  
that g ives the opport u nity t o  go  to  four years , by saying 
that Manitobans have asked u s  for i t .  They have said 
that i t  works.  We have convinced that i t  is  not only 
good for them but our society. That i s  the way. 

I have been m oved to tears by some of the speeches. 
They are real l ife. I am m oved to tears even m ore when 
I th ink  about the next person who is  go ing to  have to 
go  through th is ,  maybe one year from now, i n stead of 
10 months from now. G ive i t  the fu l l  four years and 
maybe we wi l l  h ave a th ing,  and then maybe we can 
convince the Conservatives i t  i s  good leg islat ion .  We 
wi l l  need more than 1 0  months; we wi l l  need a year 
a n d  1 0  m o n t h s .  Then , h opefu l l y, M a n i tobans  can 
convince the Conservatives t hat i t  i s  good leg is lat ion 
as wel l ,  because it i s  g ood for M anitobans. 

Mr. Ashton: You must be an opt imist if  you feel that 
we can convince the Conservatives on th is .  But then 
again ,  i f  we h ave convinced the L iberals to admit that 
f inal offer selection is n ot bad legislat ion ,  there may 
be hope yet for the Conservatives. In fact , what has 
puzzled me,  and you touched o n  i t ,  is  the fact that we 
have the second h ighest strike rate i n  the world in 
Canada. We are second only to Italy. That has been 
the consistent trend year after year after year. 

* ( 1 050) 

I put this to  Mr. Smith from Westfair, who would l ike 
to talk about the l i terature i n  very sanit ized terms. I 
w i l l  get into some of Mr. Smith 's  comments in a m i nute, 
b u t  h ow is it i n  C a n a d a ,  after t hat exper i e n c e ,  
companies s u c h  a s  Westfair themselves a n d  other 
companies cannot even themselves see that there is  
a need for a better way? The secon d  h ighest strike 
rate i n  the world - i n  a lot of cases because when you 
get into a strike in Canada, i t  is  very d ifficult to get 
out .  

You mentioned i n  terms of the saving face. I went 
through a str ike, in 1 981, that went three months.  I 
bel ieve that would not have gone three months if there 
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was some way of gett ing  the parties back to the 
bargaining table. I n  fact ,  it took, the election of the 
N D P  G overnment at  the t i m e ,  b ri n g i n g  the l nco  
representatives from Toronto and br inging i n  some of  
the  key people from Steelworkers to get  discussions 
going ,  because the two bargaining parties could not 
even talk to  each other any more. Anybody who went 
through that strike would be the fi rst to admit that was 
h a p p e n i n g .  Now,  if f i n a l  offer selection h a d  been 
avai lable,  that process woul d  have done. 

I want you to elaborate on what you had said ,  because 
I have been through it, not anywhere near as much as 
a lot the  people in th is  committee. I have n ever been 
throu g h  as much as they have been, but I have been 
through t hat situation, a strike situat ion - two of them 
actual ly. To those people on th is  committee who have 
not been throug h  a strike situat ion ,  can you perhaps 
g ive us some i dea of the kind of d ifficulty you can run 
into in a lengthy str ike,  where the two parties not only 
cannot get a contract, where in a lot of cases they 
cannot even talk to each other after a period of time? 

Mr. Z iegler: What happened -

M r. Chairma n: Yes. M r. Ziegler. 

Mr. Z iegler: I caught myself before I went too far. 

M r. Chairman: Thank you. 

M r. Z ieg ler: What h ap pens in a situat ion is that 
effectively once a strike begins, that f irst m inute, both 
p a r t i e s  are c a u g h t. T hey h ave to conv ince t h e i r  
supporters, whether it  i s  t h e  company negotiator who 
has to convince the stockholders or convince the board 
of d irectors or  the executive of the company that their 
decision was right and it  was worthwhi le ,  and they get 
caught. Likewise, the u n ion negotiating  committee and 
executives negotiate. They get g oing along and noth ing 
happens for  the first few weeks after a str ike begins, 
because the parties entrench their posit ions. They 
cannot say, wel l ,  we only went out for a day, and 
t h e refore everyth ing has h a ppene d ,  we are back 
together. l t  goes in and you g et to the situ ation -

! said negotiations h ave nothing to d o  with logic. l t  
just does not . i t  is l ike you and me. When I get into 
a s ituat ion with my k ids- my ch i ldren, they d o  not l ike 
i t  when I say k ids-they make a mistake or  they do 
something wrong but  t hey do not want to admit i t .  They 
need their way of saving face. Both parties realize that 
they have to deal with each other, but t hey also have 
to deal with their  superiors or, in the u n i on's position, 
the i r  members. They do not want to say that I was 
wrong to take you on strike. I am not saying they were, 
but they do not want to say that as the employer d oes 
not want to say that I was wrong for causing this strike 
to his superiors. 

There are not very many options that are avai lable 
d uring a strike to al low the parties to  d o  that. I mean 
you have conciliation mediation before you go on strike, 
but there are not very m any opportunities. Final offer 
selection can take the burden off the two parties and 
say wel l  I stuck to my position, but someone else chose 
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the other. lt gives them that opportunity to not say they 
were wrong. They know that they are going to be able 
to m odify their position so both are more reasonable 
when they make that selection ,  but now they can pass 
the buck.  I mean they can say I did not give i n  to the 
other party. The selector chose their  position,  so that 
is one way that it can work. 

Mr. Ashton: l t  is  interesting when you get into what 
happens, because I real ly bel ieve that i s  one of the real 
problems in Canada that we have had.  You end up i n  
situat ions-now l e t  us  take Westfair a s  an example. I 
read out an advertisement that Westfair Foods p laced 
in the newspapers in 1987, read it out to M r. Smith. 
He s a i d  he h ad not been r es p o n si b l e  for t h e  
advertisement, b u t  it  was interesting  because he had 
said to th is committee that Westfai r  Foods respected 
free trade un ions and col lective bargain ing .  

I read c o m m e n t s  f rom t h e  newspaper a n d  my 
understand ing ,  and you can correct me if I am wrong ,  
is that the strike vote was taken. l t  was supported by 
in excess of 90 percent of the employees. Now th is  ad 
said wel l there are only 1 50 people picketing. There 
are 600 people have crossed the picket l ines. This i s  
out of a total workforce of  1 ,600 or  whatever the total 
was. I mean if one was to read that article, I do not 
t h ink  one woul d  expect that Westfair Foods had any 
respect at a l l  for the un ion. 

I ask M r. Smith d irectly, d i d  he not recognize the fact 
that there was a free and democratic vote taken and 
that 90 percent of the employees supported the strike. 
I would l ike you to explain to the committee what 
h appened then, because I have seen strikes where you 
may end up with a 90 percent support. People cross 
the picket lines because they feel they have no other 
choice. They see other people taking their jobs away. 
I n  the case of Westfair, they were h i r ing str ikebreakers 
before the strike began. That was confirmed from M r. 
Smith. 

I just want to deal with that. Take Westfair as an 
example. If you can expla in what had happened with 
the strike vote, and then what happened once the strike 
occurred, so t hat we can get a balance to M r. Smith's 
comments on the one hand of respecting free t rade 
u n i ons and then some of these advertisements which 
not only were vicious personal attacks on the president 
of your local , but also were, I bel ieve, attacks on the 
workers themselves through the demographic vote who 
voted for the strike and were subject to these repeated 
newspaper attacks that did not expla in  Westfair's 
posit ion .  They attacked the unio n ,  and they attacked 
the employees. 

Mr. Z iegler: You have to put some of M r. S m ith's 
comments in context. I w i l l  g ive you a l itt le bit of the 
background h istory, the last  negotiations,  not  the one 
at the str ike, the one before. 

T h e  c o m p a n y  i n f i l t rated t h e  u ni o n  n e g o t i at i n g  
committee. They had two ind ividuals who were report ing 
d irectly back to the management. One i n d iv idual was 
told to take all the handouts, and as soon as the 
negotiat ing committee met  they were to courier it to 
th is  management ind iv idual .  The second ind ividua l  was 
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j u st d i rect l y  report i n g .  T h e  d ay t h e  contract was 
negotiated he was g iven a job at head office out of 
the bargaining unit .  I mean j u st a coinc idence that he 
got a fu l l-t ime job there. The two of them adm itted 
t h at t h ey were t a l k ing to m a n ag e m e n t  and t h at 
cont inued on .  

The c o m p any was t ry i n g  i n  the next round of  
negot iat ions to inf i l trate our negoti ating committee. l t  
got so bad we had to ask people to  take an oath saying 
t hat they are loyal and that they wi l l  not d i sclose any 
information and if  t hey do they wi l l  resign from the 
company. I mean, i t  is  that bad, but  now you put  that 
in perspective as to what happened in'87 .  As I said, 
t h e  c o m pany h onest l y  d i d  not b e lieve t ha t  t h e i r  
employees woul d  stand u p  to  them. I mean, they t ry 
and brainwash them, and they try and treat them so 
badly that they have no power l eft ; t hey int i m idate their 
employees. Then the str ike vote came in, and I was 
there, and that vote was accurate. 

He makes these comments about all the people they 
had and everyth ing, and a l l  the  people wanti n g  to go  
back to work. Wel l ,  i f  there was so many people going 
back to work , why d i d  they h ave the ads in the paper 
asking for people? I mean, under their s ituat ion, they 
s h o u l d  h ave been r u n n i n g  f i n e .  We were keep ing 
employee counts  and customer counts.  Our  people 
know who was i n  the store and who was not i n  the 
store, and there were more people h i red from off the 
street than there were from our  members. We know 
what was go ing on .  Why were they h i r ing or putt ing 
ads out ask ing  for people? Why d i d  they not open the 
Transcona store? They were never able to get up to 
fu l l  operat ion i n  Winnipeg; t hey did not get t hat last 
store go ing .  But you had the ind ication and you saw 
it in Gainers in A lberta, where the employer before the 
str ike put out an ad and h i red 1 , 000 people before the 
strike began.  They did that and they trained i t  here.  

Mr. Ashton: Wel l ,  I put that d i rectly to M r. Smith on 
last Friday. I quoted from the newspaper reports ,  and 
he attempted to deflect from that, but you are saying 
q u i te  c l e a r l y  t h at Westfa i r  F o o d s  was h i r i n g  
strikebreakers even before the strike began, and during 
t h e  s t r i k e  t h ey h i red a s i g n i f i c a n t  n u m be r  of 
str ikebreakers dur ing  the ent ire period, the 1 25-day 
period.  

Mr. Ziegler: Clearly, we had an arbitration i nvolved.  
lt g oes to show where Westfai r  is  not a bad employer. 
The company used to pay their  employees that they 
trained . They would  br ing them in for 20 hours-six 
o'clock,  five o'clock i n  the morn ing .  They woul d  tra in 
them before the store wou ld  open.  Wel l ,  before the 
str ike, they changed that. Because they knew a str ike 
was coming, they started h ir ing these people, or bringing 
them in ,  and giv ing them free train ing .  They requ i red 
them to work for 20 hours,  to work on a cash register, 
to memorize the codes, and t hey d i d  not pay them a 
cent. 

Through that arbitrat ion, we got a l ist of employees 
that d i d  that just a couple weeks or the month before 
t h e  str i k e  beg a n ,  a n d  t h e  c o m p a n y  a d m i t t e d  i n  
arbiJrat ion that there were a lot  of other people h i red 
d u ring  the strike, the same situat ion, but they would 
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n ot g ive us those names. There were several hund red 
more in that category. Clearly, there is  no doubt; the 
company has never denied i t .  They h i red a bunch of 
people before the str ike began and they h i red a b u nch 
of people d uring the str ike.  So clear ly there were a lot 
of employees that were h i red to break that str ike,  and 
the company had p lanned the str ike well in advance 
of i t  occurring. 

M r. Ashton: Wel l, i t  i s  interesting in terms of what 
happened , because M r. Smith from Westfair  Foods­
and Westfair Foods, by the way, i s  the only emp loyer 
that we have had in th is  committee that has been 
represented by an off icial of that company. Any other 
company - in fact ,  we have real ly only had one other 
company- has sent their legal representatives here to 
d o  the talking for them. Now Westfair Foods said,  and 
th is  is exactly  what M r. Smith said on Friday, that they 
have very good labour relat ions at Westfair Foods. When 
I asked h i m  how he ind icated that was the case, he 
said ,  wel l ,  there was good attendance at the Christmas 
parties at Westfair  Foods. 

N ow, you painted a pretty bleak p icture of what 
happened in 1 987.  I want to look at what has happened 
since that t ime, 1 987 to 1 990, leading up to th is  year's 
contract. Leaving aside the Christmas parties, although 
you can comment on that if  you want,  I was q uite frankly 
amazed - !  do not know where M r. Smith i s - he i nvited 
me to go  d own and talk to people in the stores. Wel l  
I have, a n d  I have talked to a l o t  o f  people. Boy, you 
d o  not even have to ask someone where they work if 
they are working in the retai l  food industry. I mean, if 
someone is  from Safeway, if  someone is from Westfair, 
you get a completely d i fferent picture and that is what 
amazes me. I mean, Safeway is their b iggest competitor 
in terms of Westfair, and yet, most people- ! am not 
sayin g  they are a perfect employer- most people said 
Safeway is a fair ly decent employer. We have had people 
come to th is  committee. You talk to anyone and they 
start  t a l k ing about  t h e  terr i b l e  c l i m ate of l a b o u r  
relations, you can a lmost g uarantee that they are 
work ing  for Westfair. 

I want to ask you because it is very relevant to th is  
committee. We are deal ing wi th  a strike that perhaps 
could have been prevented if  f inal offer select ion was 
avai lable.  What is your assessment of labour relat ions 
c l imate at Westfair Foods? Is  it as rosy as M r. Smith 
suggests, or are there continu ing problems? 

* ( 1 1 00) 

Mr. Z iegler: Well ,  if i t  is  rosy, the roses are dead and 
done.- ( interjection)- You got that .  My main duty with 
our union is presenting arbitrations, deal ing in mediation 
with employees who have had some d iscip l ine or not 
been paid for their  vacation and everyth ing else. The 
feel ings with Westfair Foods are no better now than 
they were the day the strike ended. Maybe I wi l l  not 
go  that far. After the strike they are probably a l i t t le 
better than they were r ight after the strike, but they 
are sti l l  pretty bad . We have a company who- I mean, 
we have trouble with people gett ing breaks, people 
want to go to the washroom, everyth ing .  l t  is absolutely 
terrible, the atmosphere; employees are sti l l  int im idated. 
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They are so in t im idated that they are even scared 
to testi fy-! had a hearing on one th ing  about people 
work ing l ess than four hours.  The company bel ieves 
it  d oes not  have to fol low the legislat ion .  They bel ieve 
that, it t h ey want to send someone home or a l low 
someone to go home early after an hour  or two, they 
do not h ave to fol low employment standards, it d oes 
not apply to them. I t ry to get people to  just say that 
on such and such d ay I on ly  worked an hour  and a 
half or two hours .  Employees said ,  I wi l l  testify as long 
as my supervisor, or  no one i s  go ing to be t here from 
the company. I said they are going to be there. They 
are scared to just te l l  the truth because it wi l l  affect 
in their  scheduiing.  The company h as a lot of power, 
and they d o  that because they schedule for these 
employees hours and that is their  l ifel ine.  

The Christmas party. I f  anyth ing,  it reminds me almost 
l i ke t he Gove r n m e n t  s o m e t i m e s, t h e  federa l  
Government, where I may not  l ike what they have done 
i n  a lot  of th ings ,  but  when  they g ive me a free tax 
credit  on  my RASP, I will take it. I! i s  not because I 
i ike what they are doing because it benefits me, so i f  
Westfair wants to throw a free C hristmas party and I 
get a free dr ink  or free meal or someth ing ,  yes, maybe 
some people attend it, but d o  not take t h at as saying 
that the  relat ionsh ips are any better than they were. 

Mr. Ashton: I w i l l  be interested to hear in my next 
d i sc ussions with people who are employees at Westfai r  
Foods what they think about that comment too, because 
I d i d  find i t  rather amazin g .  You are saying that it has 
even got to the point where real ly since the strike people 
cannot even get breaks. They are hassled about go ing 
to the  washroom. Maybe I misunderstood what you 
said, but i s  that real ly what  is  happeni n g  with th is  so­
,:;alled progressive employer? 

Mr. Ziegler :  We have had problems ongoing for a 
n u m ber of years. When it suits the company, it is slow, 
t hey will send someone home because they do not 
want to pay them. We h ave had situat ions,  some i n  the 
past, some recent ,  where people have had nosebleeds 
and they have not been able to get rel ief from their 
cash reg ister. People have to g o  to the washroom and 
they say, we are too busy, I cannot !et you g o. One 
woman stood for seven hours at her t i l l; they would 
not let her h ave her break. 

Their other view i s  that they wil l  work you for 45 
m i nutes, they wiii g ive you your 1 0-minute break, and 
then they will work you for f ive hours afterwards. Then 
they say, well, we have met our obligations. The concept 
i s  that i t  should be sort of the midd le  of your shift so 
you get a break. That is what it i s  cal led, a break. That 
is not to them, as long as they give you your 1 0  minutes, 
15 m i nutes, they are happy. 

Mr. Ashton: I just want to put it in perspective. Is that 
a problem, for example,  at Safeway, a s im i larly large 
employer? i d o  not want to be u nfair to Westfair, or 
are they the only ones that are real l y  creati n g  th is  type 
of situat ion? 

Mr. Ziegler :  There is n o  comparison between Safeway 
and Westfair. I have to relate an example and I have 
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to g ive Safeway a big pat on the back. We had a member 
who committed suic ide about a week and a half ago 
at that store; the member had been terminated for 
theft .  1 t  had a big i mpact on the employees because 
a lot of the employees had sai d ,  yes, I saw so-and-so 
take a package of cigarettes. Th is happened Thursday 
evening .  By Fr iday Westfair  (sic) had a counsellor i n  
that store talk ing  to employees, g iv ing them t ime off 
work to talk about what had happened . 

You could h ave someone come into the store with 
a machine gun and mow d own half the employees, and 
Westfair  woul d  j ust go  h i re another couple of people 
the same d ay to f i l l  i n  the store. There is  no comparison 
between the two as to how they t reat their  employees. 
There is no comparison. We have no trouble with breaks 
at Safeway. 

Mr. Ashto n: Wel l ,  it is in terest ing because Safeway 
has not been before th is  committee argu ing that f inal 
offer select ion ,  the repeal ,  and as I said ,  this is  the 
only employer- ! f ind that absolutely amazing -the only 
employer that has come before this committee with an 
official f rom t hat company. The only other employer 
rea l l y  t hat  h as m a d e  a p resentat i o n  before t h i s  
committee is  Unicity Taxi .  Westfair and Unicity Taxi really 
are the only two employers. One, in th is  case, had a 
legal representative come here. lt just amazes me, when 
one looks at their record as employers. 

I am just wondering ,  you have had some k n owledge 
to  the Unicity as welL I d o  not want to  get into 
speculat ion, but I really think that one of the reasons 
these particular compan ies have been here is they want 
to  keep th is  c l imate of labour relat ions. They want to­
i n  fact M r. Smi th  sa id  you  cannot have good col lective 
agreements un less you have fear. Fear of a strike and 
fear of a lockout. From your experience in d eal ing  with 
Westfair and also your k nowledge of Unicity, i s  that a 
concern you have, that if f inal offer selection is repealed 
i t  wi l l  g ive much more of a leeway, a blank cheque if 
you l ike, to companies to d o  the k i n d  of things you 
have been ta lk ing about here today? 

Mr. Z i eg ler : You h ave to l o o k  at b o t h  o f  t h ose 
employers. You look at  Westfair Foods,  Andy Smith ,  
they sti l l  have final offer selection in a lot  of the  contracts 
in the western provinces and that is because most of 
them are our un ions-they have got a th ing-are not 
taking them on as vigorously or  trying to  stand up  for 
their members' r ights. I cannot understand that double 
standard. i t  i s  good for  the rest of Canada but i t  i s  
not  good for  Manitoba. That i s  because they do not 
want to  break the u n ions i n  the other provinces. They 
want to break us here. 

I look at Unicity Taxi .  I presented before the Labour 
Board our  case on appl ication for f inal offer selection.  
You have to understand Unicity Taxi. Unicity Taxi also 
wants to get r id of a union for its members to the point 
where M r. Watson was u p  ta lk ing about the French 
translation of the preamble to The Labour Relations 
Act being d ifferent than the Engl ish translation of The 
Labour Relat ions Act , so therefore th is  is  a charter 
issue. Therefore, under charter issue we should strike 
d own f inal  offer selection,  or  we should not i nvoke it .  
H e  was graspi n g  at straws that are u nbel ievable.  His 
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whole attitude of that presentat ion was to prevent u s  
t h e  opport u nity from using f inal offer select ion,  because 
i f  you d i d  that I g uess we would be back on str ike 
again .  You have to remember, t hree contracts ago we 
took a wage freeze at Un ic i ty Tax i .  Two contracts ago 
we had I t h i n k  about a six-week strike. Last contract 
we had a 70-day str ike, and that was on ly  70 d ays 
because of the legislat ion .  

There i s  a group who want to get r id  of the u n ion .  
We have an arbitration award after the last  s t r ike  with 
them. Joy Cooper who used to be v ice-chair  on the 
Labour Board ruled against the company. They tr ied 
to take away the duty of our  bargain i n g  un i t  members 
a n d  g ive it to s o m e  s u p e r v i s o r s  a n d  c a l l it a 
technological change. The arb itrator i n dicated that was 
not proper and ordered them to change it. They would 
not agree. We had to go  back to her for clarif icat ion .  
They woul d  not agree. They are now sayin g  they are 
not go ing to l i ve up to an arb it rator 's  decision .  They 
only have one desire. 

Now, the point  that I make on that is  who is  next? 
I s  i t  go ing to  be my daughter? She is  young n ow. M aybe 
it  is going to be one of my s isters. M aybe i t  is  go ing  
to  be one of your  daughters or sisters or  n ieces who 
is  going to be put  through i t .  Who is  next? 

M r. Ashto n: You were stati n g  q u ite clearly to  the 
committee that you believe, in a number of recent cases 
here in Manitoba,  that there were employers whose 
main goal was to b reak the un ion .  You have i n dicated 
to the n u m ber of strikes where because i t  i s  legal to 
h i re replacement workers, scabs if  you l ike, you can 
c o n t i n u e  t h e  o p e r at i o n  of t h e  f i r m  even t h o u g h  
employees are on a legal str ike. You are suggest ing  
there are employers who want  to b reak the un ion  and 
that  by  tak ing  away f ina l  offer selection ,  a l l  we are 
go ing to do, i f  th is  committee and others at some po int  
i n  t i me vote to repeal f ina l  offer selection ,  is  make i t  
t hat much  easier for  them to keep people out  o n  a 
p icket l i ne  for month after month  and potent ia l ly break 
the u n ion as wel l .  

* ( 1 1 1 0) 

Mr. Ziegler: Clearly, that is what I h ave said. Clearly, 
that is what a l ot of other people have said at th is  
m icrophone over the l ast week and a ha l f ,  two weeks.  
l t  goes beyond that. l t  may be one point  that has not 
real ly  been made about th is  legis lat ion that should be. 
This legislat ion can have another process, I mean, i t  
can work when the two parties are not out to bash 
each other's heads either. i t  can work i n  that regard 
also. it a l lows the parties when they j ust d isagree to  
g ive i t  to someone else to make that decision .  We have 
used i t  in a lot of situations, those are the ones that 
d o  not make the air, where the Parties use it to both 
the ir  benefit. They get sett lements. 

Vista Park Lodge u sed f inal  offer select ion ,  was not 
a company that was out to break the union.  FOS worked 
in that situation and i t  helped both of them. l t  can be 
used and I th ink  with time it is  go ing to be used by 
more and more parties where t hey are not out get each 
other but where i t  is an alternative to  a l low them to 
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save face or to  a l low them to deal with a situation 
where they just p h i l osophical ly do not agree with the 
un ion ,  but  yet not have to resort to a str ike .  That i s  
one po in t  that maybe h as not  been made ,  but  that is  
a very b ig  role that FOS can p lay i n  Manitoba.  l t  d oes 
not have to  be only with the un ions or employers, there 
are a lot  of employers who are not out to b reak the 
un ions .  There are a lot  of good employers. I h ave dealt 
with a lot of good employers. 

There are some of them that need that extra tool .  
That i s  a b ig  p lus that maybe has not been dealt  with 
o n  f inal offer selection and should be kept in m i n d .  

Mr. Ashton: I agree with you. There are good employers 
out t here and i t  is i n teresti n g  that we are not  gett in g  
t h e  g o o d  employers, t h e  ones with good labour relat ions 
comi n g  before th is  committee saying get r id of f inal 
offer selection .  The on ly two companies that we have 
had come forward are the companies that h ave had 
some of the most bitter str ikes in recent memory. That 
is why I real ly wonder if it is not because t hey wish to 
break the un ion .  

By the way, I d o  not k now if  you are aware, but  M r. 
Smi th  tr ied to suggest that somehow in Mani toba that 
M FCW has worse contracts than the affi l iates, the locals 
in other prov inces. The way I read it, i t  was a lmost as 
if, just looking at some of the comments that they put 
in the newspaper, and th is i s  my i nterpretat ion ,  that 
they are trying to teach M FCW, local 832 of the U FCW 
a lesson .  

I woul d  just l i ke to a s k  y o u ,  y o u  have obviously h ave 
knowledge of other areas, what you th ink  of that 
comment? 

Mr. :Ziegler: By and large, I th ink our contract i s  superior 
to any of them i n  Canada. There may be an i n d iv idual  
clause here or there that they have better. That is the 
same with every contract. We have some very good 
contracts i n  a smal l  employer that has one good benefit 
but that has a lot of other bad , that is  just the g ive 
and take or negotiat ions.  

You have to look at Andy Smith,  where he is  coming 
from.  We are i n  negotiat ions r ight now, and i f  you -

Mr. Ashto n: I am not sure. We d o  not have any 
Government  M e m ber here c u rrent ly. With al l  d u e  
respect, I d o  not know, -(interjection)-

Mr. Chairma n: Charlotte is r ight  there. 

M r. Ashton:  We have one Member, the M i n ister i s  not 
here. I th ink  this i s  a very important d i scuss ion .  I f  the 
G overnment Members d o  not wish to cont inue the 
sitting at this point i n  time, we can come back when 
they are organized . This i s  a very serious matter. 

M r. Chairman: There are six Members present That 
is a quorum. We wi l l  carry on.  

Mr. Ashto n: My apologies, M r. Ziegler. I f ind i t  very 
frustrat ing to say the least that the M in ister, herself, 
i s  not here. This committee has a purpose. i bel ieve 
you are relat ing in formation that is very i mportant for 
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our del iberations. My apologies, I hope that the M in ister 
and other G overnment Members could be asked to 
attend  th is  committee. I th ink  i t  i s  real ly i mportant. 
Perhaps if you could continue your comments I am 
q uite wil l i ng  to adjourn if the Min ister - !  real ly d o  bel ieve 
for the p urpose of the p resentat ions t h at i t  woul d  be 
far better i f  we had the M i nister here. 

Mr. Jay C owan (Churchill): On a point of order. There 
is  a certa in practice that has grown up over the years 
around the conduct ing of committee m eet ings.  One of 
them is t hat the M i nister responsib le be here at the 
committee meet ing  when p resenters are making their 
case. What i s  being said here today i s  very i m portant 
to the whole issue of f inal offer select ion .  We expected 
the M i n ister wou l d  want to be here to  l i sten. 

We h ave i n  the past recessed the committee for a 
short period of t ime to al low M i n i sters to carry o n  
bus iness t hat they felt they h a d  to  carry o n  for five or  
ten minutes and then reconvene the committee when 
they came back. What I woul d  suggest we d o  i n  th is  
instance is  recess the committee unt i l  the M i n i ster can  
come back ,  and then  we reconvene the committee. 
That is a stand ard practice in the past and certa in ly  
someth ing  we d id  when we were in  Government and 
we wou l d  expect the present G overnment to do.  

Hon. Charl otte Oleson (Minister of Family Serv ices): 
Thank you, but I do not th ink  t here is  any need to 
recess the committee. The M i nister will be back shortly. 
I w i l l  not elaborate on Hansard on the reasons  for her 
short absence, but  I th ink that you could g o  ahead 
with the committee and proceed . She w i l l  be back 
momentari ly. 

M r. Ashton: Yes,  I th ink  we have been fairly reasonable 
i n  terms of d u ration .  I f  the M i nister h as an  u rgent 
meeting  and cannot attend ,  we cou ld have recessed . 
What I am concerned about i s  the fact t here was n o  
notice. W e  d o  n o t  k n ow when the M i nister w i l l  be back .  
I real ly  bel ieve th is presentat ion,  other p resenters, 
deserve to h ave the M inister here to l i sten to those 
comments. I wou l d  suggest that we recess t i l l  the 
M i nister is  able to attend.  

M r. Chairman:  l t  is not paramount that the  M i nister 
be present at al l t imes. I f  i t  i s  the wil l  of  the comm ittee 
that they want to  recess unt i l  the M i nister returns,  then 
that is  f ine.  What is the wi l l  of  the committee? 

Mrs. Oleson: I d isagree with the Member. I t h i n k  you 
could go on. I had i n dicated that the M i nister woul d  
b e  back m omentari ly. You could cont inue with the 
committee, and the M in ister wi l l  be able to read the 
comments i n  Hansard . I f  there is some point  t hat is 
being m issed , I am sure she w i l l  be apprised of i t  by 
her staff, and we could cont inue with the meet ing .  We 
have a lot  of people to hear. I woul d  suggest we get 
on with business. 

Mr. Cowan: On a point of order. I suggest we get on 
with the business as well ,  and the bus iness is  having 
the M i n ister who is responsib le for a p iece of legislat ion 
here to l i sten to the p resentations that are made. This 
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p iece of legislation is as i mportant as any other business 
that we do in th is  H ouse. l t  is a standard practice for 
a M i n ister to  want to  be present at a l l  t imes to hear 
what people are saying,  ordinary Manitobans are saying 
to the G overnment with respect to the legislation they 
bring forward .  We have representat ion here. 

Wel l ,  I see the M i nister has returned . I just make the 
point that i n  essence, the committee work did stop unt i l  
the  M in ister h ad an opportun ity to  return .  i t  probably 
would have been easier had we recessed,  but h aving 
not done so, I suggest that we ask M r. Ziegler to repeat 
his l ast answer which the M i nister missed and carry 
on with the question ing.  

M r. Chairman: M r. Cowan , you d o  not have a point  
of order. We wi l l  just  carry on .  

* * * * *  

M r. Cowan :  First t ime th is  year I d i d  not have one. 

M r. Chairman: No, that is  not correct either. 

Mr. Ashton: I real ize the Member may not have had 
a point of order, but  he had a point .  I th ink  perhaps 
we shoul d  ask M r. Ziegler to g ive the answer that he 
was i n  the p rocess of g iving .  Our apologies, but  I d o  
bel ieve i t  i s  important f o r  the M i ni ster to  be present. 
The M i nister i n  part icu lar, who is  br ing ing th is  B i l l  
forward, should be  hearing al l  t he  arguments on various 
s ides of the issue, and in this case from the many 
presenters such as yourself for sayin g  that the M i nister 
is  wrong and i l l  advised . S o  p lease cont inue your 
comments. 

* * * * *  

M r. C hairman: M rs.  Hammond,  o n  a point of order. 

Hon. Gerrie Hammond (Minister of Labou r) :  We were 
tal k i n g  about breaks t here. I d i d  not really feel I had 
to ask the committee to recess to have a few m inutes 
out of committee without it gett ing to be a giant 
d iscussion.  I have been h ere every m i n ute of th is 
committee p retty wel l .  I real ly th ink that the comments 
about me being out are a l itt le u nfair. I f  M r. Ziegler 
feels he  has someth ing that I should hear while I am 
here, I woul d  be very happy to hear him, but I s incerely 
o bject considering the amount of time this committee 
has sat and the amount of time I have sat h ere and 
real ly l istened to what people are sayin g .  

M r. C hairman: M rs. Hammond,  y o u  do not have a 
point  of order. 

M rs. Hammond: Either? 

M r. C hairman: Either. 

* * * * *  

M r. Ashton: M r. Chairperson , just back to M r. Ziegler, 
if you would  l ike to just cont inue. I th ink th is is an 
important issue. 
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M r. Ziegler: To restate the q uestion as I see i t  was 
about the comments by M r. Smith about our contract 
being poorer than the other provinces. As I i n d icated ,  
I strongly feel that our  contract is  superior to  any of  
them i n  western Canada. I k n ow for  sure that of  the  
two provinces, B .C.  and A lberta, there is no comparison. 
Saskatchewan i s  c lose, but I st i l l  th ink we are superior. 
You have to take that comment in l ight of what is going 
on.  

We are about to beg in  negotiations with Westfa ir  
Foods.  I mean,  they are trying to make us  look bad 
s o  that they  c a n - t h e y  h ave i n terfered with t h e  
negotiation process so many t imes and you have t o  
take i t  into l ight  o f  t hose previous actions a n d  I am 
sure that is  what he i s  do ing there.  He is  trying to  make 
u s  look bad in front of our members. I wi l l  put  our 
contract u p  and we have done comparisons against it ,  
and our  contract stands up. He wants to get r id of this 
u n i on so you have to  take that i n  l ight of that. 

M r. Ashton: I also thank you for c larifying what the 
situation is  i n  terms of f inal  offer selection because I 
tr ied to get M r. Smith to clar ify, and I do bel ieve a 
n u m be r  of M e m bers  of t h i s  c o m mit tee  h a d  a 
misunderstand ing  about what the situation is .  

I bel ieve the d ocuments- !  mean q uite frank ly  I am 
amazed when I read th is  letter. l t  bears no relat ionship 
at a l l  to  what M r. Smith  had said .  The effect or  i ntent 
of the letter was-and I d o  not know if you heard his 
comments, but essent ia l ly you are saying that th is  is  
a procedural letter, i t  relates t o  a contract that d oes 
not inc lude f inal  offer selection  in the free-stand ing  way 
as it d i d  previously, pr ior to 1 987 our  u nderstand ing  
is  i t  was i n  p lace. 

The reason I am asking th is  q uestion is because 
yesterday we had someone here who worked for Econo­
Mart who said that in the futu re she bel ieves, n ot on ly  
if  you take away f inal  offer select ion from legis lat ion ,  
i t  w i l l  not be avai lable i n  the legis lative sense, but  i t  
actual ly cou ld  i n  some ways become an issue, an issue 
that might even contribute to a str ike in  terms of the 
sense that people would want to get back . . . f inal 
offer select ion ,  someth ing that wil l  be taken away if  
th is  legislat ion is  passed . 

I am just wondering if you cou ld e laborate on that 
fol lowing from your very important contr ibut ion to th is  
c o m m i t tee ,  in  c l ar i fy i n g  t h e ,  I wou ld  n ot say 
misinformat ion,  I d o  not want  to make that sort  of  
accusation ,  but  I would say that people were misled 
as to the effect of these letters. 

M r. Ziegler: Quite clearly, and I th ink  i t  i s  important 
to  note what happened in  1 987 .  Article 41 is  not an 
agreement by the parties to a f inal offer select ion 
process. What i t  is ,  was an attempt by the company 
to opt out of the legislat ion .  

The str ike i n  1 987 was prolonged by the company 
wanting a legal b ind ing  agreement sayin g  there i s  no 
such thing as FOS. They could not get that so what 
they settied for i n  p lace i s  a document that opts out 
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of as much of i t  as i t  can .  They are saying you cannot 
d eal  with this, you cannot deal with that,  you cannot 
d o  this,  you cannot apply for f inal offer select ion  unt i l  
you jump through th is  hoop and you jump t h rough that 
hoop.  What Westfair d i d  was to negot iate out of the 
p rocess. They have n o  support for  i t  here in  M a nitoba. 
Everywhere i n  Canada i t  is  good legis lat ion ,  but  they 
are not trying to  bust the un ion there. Here i t  i s  not 
good legislat ion .  I mean i t  is  good or i t  is  not good , 
and it is good . 

M r. Ashton: it is amazing because if one was to sit  
here Fr iday afternoon,  one would  have assumed that 
Westfa ir, wel l ,  they had f inal  offer selection i n  p lace 
unt i l '87 .  The interpretat ion Members of this committee 
had from their p resentation was that they sti l l  had it 
in p lace and i t  would st i l l  be in p lace in  1 990. 

What you are saying is  that i t  was in  p lace, i t  was 
taken out, the pressure since 1 985 from Westfair  Foods 
has been to  take i t  out  of the contract . You are saying 
that the last contract basically inc luded some further 
c o m p l icat i o n s  in terms of app ly ing  for f i n a l  offer 
se lect i o n .  The p r o v i s i o n  bas ica l l y  r e l a t e s  t o  t h e  
legislat ion .  

You are saying that actual ly dur ing the negotiat i o n s  
one of the issues that kept  the strike going was the 
fact that  Westfair  wanted to take out f ina l  offer select ion.  
I want t h i s  t o  be  very c lear to M e m bers of  t h e  
committee, because th is  was a company that came 
before this committee and said that they were argu ing 
that f ina l  offer selection  should be repealed and at the 
same t ime in  the i r  presentat ion were g iv ing  Mem bers 
of this committee the impression that somehow t hey 
woul d  be q uite happy if  f inal offer selection was to  
remain i n  p lace despite the legis lat ive repea l .  W h at you 
are saying i s  that since 1 985,  Westfair Foods has done 
everyth ing possib le t o  get  r id  of f inal offer selection , 
not only before th is leg islat ive committee but in contract 
negotiat ions with the un ion .  

M r. :Z ieg l e r: Clear ly, that  i s  correct . C l e a r l y, t h at 
prolonged the strike last year and t here was a lot  of 
issues of them gett ing  legal opin ions.  At one point , 
th ink  they even wanted a letter from the M i n ister of 
Labour ( M rs .  Hammond)  saying that yes, we can opt 
out of i t .  They actual ly wanted the M in ister of Labour 
t o  write a letter saying that yes, i t  is  okay for Westfair 
to  opt out of legis lat ion .  That prolonged the strike and 
i t  caused problems in  t hese negot iat ions and i n  the 
last. I can see it  bein g  an issue, as you mentioned 
earl ier, of u s  trying to negotiate i t  back in ,  i f  i t  is  not  
i n  the leg is lat ion i t  c o u l d  cause a d ispute. i n  t h e  
legislat ion it cannot  cause a strike, there is a provision 
not al lowing that ,  but i t  w i l l  cause problems i l  we h ave 
to t ry and negotiate it  i n  again .  

Mr. Ashton: i t  ju st amazes me t h at a company ca n  
come i n  a n d  m ake a presentat ion and g ive such a 
d i fferent  p icture of what has h appened i n  reality. i real!y 
t h a n k  you for coming  before the comm ittee in clar ifyi n g  
exactly what h as been h a p p e n i n g  i n  t e r m s  of final offer 
select i o n .  

i just  w a n t  lo  move on ,  just a coup le  cl q uick 
quest ions,  l k now we do have other p resenters th is  
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morn ing .  There have been var ious cr it ic isms made of 
final offer select ion and i t  was suggested that people 
are going to s it  out the str ike for 60 d ays so they can 
access i t  because of the 60-day win d ow and I woul d  
l ike your comments o n  that.  

l t  has been s u g gested t h at i t  weake n s  t h e  
accountabi l ity o f  the un ion leadersh ip t o  its membership.  
You have had the experience obviously i n  terms of 
Westfair. I would l ike you to comment o n  that.  l t  has 
even been suggested that f inal offer select ion d iv ides 
people i n  the workplace. I want to ask you for a few 
comments on that as we l l ,  because we h ave had people 
come b efore th is c o m mittee,  part i c u l a rly  Westfa i r  
workers, who h ave s a i d  th is  is  the on ly  th ing  that has 
brought people together in the last two and a half  year 
perio d .  

R i g h t  n o w  i n  Westfair the people who walked the 
p icket l ines, the people who crossed the  picket l ines, 
the new employees are a l l  saying the same th ing ,  that 
f inal offer select ion should be kept i n  legislat ion and 
B i l l  31  should not pass.  So I want you,  i f  you can,  to  
dea l  with some of those, and those are, q u ite seriously 
and this has amazed me,  but  t hose are three of the 
strongest, supposedly strongest, arguments that have 
been put  forward on f inal  offer select ion .  I wou l d  
appreciate your comments o n  t h ose. 

M r. Z iegler: l t  i s  a comment that I h ave heard ,  and I 
cou ld not bel ieve either, tal k i n g  about staying out for 
the 60- to 70-day window. I t h i n k  people have said i t  
correctly, that i f  you have been on str ike  yourself, you 
could never make that comment.  That is  l i ke say ing I 
am go ing  to take a hammer and h i t  myself on the head 
so that when I stop i t  fee ls  good. That is  what the 
comparison is .  l t  is  l ike you are saying ,  I am go ing  to 
beat myself up, so when I stop I feel better. N o  one i n  
their  r ight m ind  i s  go ing to lengthen a str ike a d a y  i f  
t hey can sett le.  N o  one is  go ing  to  lengthen i t  a day. 

I f  you have been on str ike, the problems it causes 
f inancially, the problem i t  causes with your fami ly, the 
problem i t  causes with your eo-workers, the problem 
i t  causes with your customers, the problems i t  causes 
with your employer. No one i n  their  r ight  m i n d  woul d  
walk a day longer than they have t o ,  i f  t hey can sett le.  
N ow that d oes not mean that people are going to g ive 
u p  on their  pr inc iples. If t here is someth ing  at stake 
as far are their pr incip les or  what is right or wrong,  
yes they wi l l  wa lk  a d ay longer. But not just so they 
can apply for FOS. 

With regards to the comments about weakening 
leadersh ip .  Every u nion  leader i s  responsib le to the 
membershi p  and every leader that I know of i n  M anitoba 
is elected by their  membersh ip ,  and that is the u l t imate 
test. I f  they do not de l iver to  their members, i f  they 
do not do a g ood job ,  they do not get elected. That 
i s  the bottom l i ne. You k n ow the p rocess, in our  u nion 
we vote i n  favour of f inal  offer selection ,  but  before 
that decision to make an appl icat ion occurs, i t  is 
d iscussed amongst our comm ittee, i t  i s  looked at. We 
do not just say, okay, I d o  not care what the members 
want, I am do ing this. I f  we d i d  that, people would not 
be  around to get elected. We are l i ke you. We are l i ke  
pol i t ic ians. We get  elected by the people who are out 
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there.  We serve them. We d o  n ot serve, we a in ' t  gonna 
be back.  The f inal  comment,  I forgot the th i rd part  of  
your q uest ion ,  I apologize. 

(The Acting  Chairman,  M r. Darren Prazn ik ,  in the 
Chair. )  

M r. Ashton: I just have o n e  f inal  quest ion .  We started 
off our d iscussions this morning,  our questions, in terms 
of this latest development ,  of the fact that the Liberals 
are finally recogniz ing there i s  value in final offer 
select ion .  This,  by the way, is from the Party that said 
i t  was bad leg is lat ion ;  i t  was bad for u nions;  i t  was bad 
for bus iness. N ow, they have come a l i t t le bit a long 
the way. 1 feel  i t  i s  not enough ;  1 0  months is  real ly­
i t  i s  not much more. I mean, the M i nister of Labour 
( M rs. Hammond) could d o  that,  but  for the Liberals, 
t h ey p r o b a b l y  feel it is a b i g  m ove,  because 
psycholog ically they have admitted -and i t  is right here 
in the Free P ress this morn ing ;  i t  is not based o n  
comments here-that f inal  offer selection  h a s  some 
value. 

We have been d esperately tryin g  to get the message 
through to them. People before th is  committee have 
desperately been trying to  get the m essage through 
to  them. l t  appears that they h ave a l itt le b i t  of an  
i n k l i n g  of how i mportant th is  is ,  but  q uite frankly, and 
I agree with you ,  10  months is  just not enough.  

* ( 1 1 30)  

I want to ask you and g ive you an opportunity as I 
h ave to other people, and th is  t ime part icular ly focused 
o n  a L iberal Caucus that you k now has moved, maybe 
not a l o n g  way, m ay b e  a n  i nc h  o r  two towards  
recogniz ing the value of  f inal offer selection, what wou l d  
y o u  say to  t h e m ?  I th ink  y o u  mentioned the r i g h t  word 
before, about servin g  your members, and that is what 
u nions d o - serve their members. In terms of serving 
the i r  constituents, what appeal wou l d  you make to  
them? What wou l d  you  say to  them,  and  I have said 
th is  i n  context whether it is p u b l ic or p rivate, to try 
and convince them to m ove even further now? 

They h ave gone t hose f i rst couple of steps. That is 
the toughest part i n  any particular situat ion.  What woul d  
y o u  say to t h e m  to t r y  and move t h e m  where t hey need 
to be, which is  to g ive f inal  offer selection a real chance 
i n  M an i t o b a  s o  t h at t h e  m a n y  p e o p l e  t hat you  
ment ioned, who h ave been  before th is  committee, who 
h ave spoken from the heart, people who have never 
p resented to a legislat ive committee before, who gave 
up their  t ime, their scarce spare t ime, who came here­
many of them were so nervous, it was c lear- never 
spoken in p ub l ic  before, who spoke from the heart and 
to ld  heart  rend ing  stories about what it  i s  l i ke out there 
in the jung le  of labour relat ions that some people woul d  
l i k e  t o  see a s  happen i n g ,  what woul d  y o u  say? 

I g ive you the opportunity to real ly address your 
comments to  the L iberals this t ime, because you may 
be more of an opt imist than I am. I am not sure if we 
can m ove the Conservatives, but in the case of the 
L iberals, they have taken that fi rst step. What would 
you say to try and convince them to g o  to the point 
that is  necessary to save f inal  offer selection and g ive 
it a chance?  
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M r. :Zieg ler: Clearly the Liberal Party elected a lot of 
new Members to the Legis lature in the spring of 1 988, 
and that support came, u nfortunately, at the l oss of 
another Party, that I support.  But i t  came from one 
group of people.  l t  came from working M a nitobans. l t  
came from working Manitobans i n  t h e  city and across 
t h e  prov ince, a n d  t h ose w o r k i n g  M an it o b a n s  saw 
someth ing in the Liberal Party; t hey were hoping that 
t hey cared for them. 

You have those employees i n  rural  Manitoba who 
work for  a small employer; you have the smal l  employers 
in Win n i peg. You have the women, and women are a 
group that are strongly h i t  by th is  B i l l ,  because a l ot 
of them are single women. They cann ot afford to take 
the time off. A lot  of them cannot even afford to l i ve 
on the m oney they are mak i n g ,  never m ind  the effect 
of a str ike. The new Canadians-we had the speech 
from a garment worker-another group t h at cannot 
afford the effect of a strike. I f  you real ly care for t hose 
groups of Manitobans who got you e lected, show them, 
because if you act the other way and d o  not g ive it  a 
chance, those same Manitobans wi l l  go back against 
you. Those are the Man itobans-they h ave been here 
speaking to  you, or t hey are the ones that have not 
gone t h rough i t  yet . I f  you want t o  keep their support,  
show t hem you care for Manitobans. 

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Praznik): I u nderstand the 
Member for Thompson ( M r. Ashton) said he had one 
f inal  quest ion ,  the l ast one. 

Mr. Ashton: I d o  not h ave a quest ion ,  M r. Chairperson .  
I just want to  thank t h e  p resenter a n d  I real ly  hope 
the message that you brought  to  the committee, some 
of the people, w i l l  get through.  Thank you very much.  

Mr. Edwards: I have a q uestion for  the presenter. You 
mentioned that f inal  offer selection  was a part of your 
col lective agreement. You said you negotiated your 
agreement i n  1 9 8 1  and i t  was negotiated out i n  1 986. 
H ow did that come to be negot iated out i n  1 986 i f  f inal  
offer selection is  such a wonderfu l th ing?  

Mr. Ziegler: L ike i n  a l l  s ituat ions w i th  negotiat ions, 
that contract expired M ay 5 ,  1 985.  The contract was 
sett l e d  A u g u st 1 1 ,  1 98 6 - d ragged on for  a year, 
whatever. The employer was adamant about gett ing i t  
out.  They made other proposals to us that were good . 
We have a responsib i l i ty to take our  membershi p  those 
offers. I n  1 985 we never looked at what was going to 
happen i n '87.  We d i d  not feel we could take a str ike 
i n  1 986, after a year and a half  of negotiat ions over 
f inal  offer select ion.  

We d i d  not g ive i t  u p  easi ly, but negotiat ions is a 
g ive-and-take process. We d i d  not  want it out.  That is 
how it  came out. 

Mr. Edwards: Again I am going to refer back. Mr. Smith ,  
when he was h ere ,  c o m m e n t e d  t hat  in  w e s t e r n  
Canada-

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Praznik): Cou l d  I ask M r. 
Edwards to speak u p ,  p lease? We are h aving a hard  
t ime hearing h im.  
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Mr. Edwards: S u re,  M r. Chairperso n .  When M r. Smith 
was here,  he i n dicated , I bel ieve, that the Westfair 
workers i n  M anitoba, perhaps i n  Winn ipeg, whichever 
ones were on str ike in 1 987 ,  were poorer paid than 
any other workers with t h at company in weste r n  
Canada. To y o u r  k nowledge, is  that true? 

Mr. Ziegier: I d o  not bel ieve so. Because of t ime lapse, 
t here may be a couple of months where their contracts 
may have been renewed before us and they were ahead 
of us. But, no, that is  not my understanding .  In fact, 
I t h ink  we were paid more. There may h ave been an 
exception with some categories i n  Edmonton ,  just 
because of t iming and everyth ing else it is possible. 
But for a short period ,  they were ahead of us. By and 
large, the industry is  pretty standard across the country. 

Mr. Edwards: Let me get th is straight .  M r. Smith  says 
you are one of the poorest paid or the poorest pai d ,  
he m a y  have sai d .  You r  evidence is  that y o u  are far 
from the poorest pai d .  You are above average, are you 
saying? Are you one of the best? You are the person 
w h o  negot iates t h i n g s .  You must  do c o mparat ive 
analysis even with in  the same employer. Where d o  you 
rank ?  

Mr. Ziegler: We are among t h e  top group. A s  I said ,  
i t  depends on t h e  exact d ate o f  the expirat ion and 
renewal .  There may h ave been on one category- ! 
guess it reflects our  concern for our members- I th ink  
i n  A lberta they may h ave taken a wage increase i n  l ieu  
of some other  items, and I th ink i t  was a l u m p  sum 
payment .  They m ay h ave been ahead of us  for a short 
perio d .  

Over a l l  t h e  years, w e  have been i n  t h e  top group 
of wages. I n  fact , i n  the food store i n dustry, some of 
the Winn ipeg agreements are some of the best in North 
America, for some of the rates. B.C.  of course has a 
h igher rate; they have a h igher rate for everyth ing .  We 
are some of the best i n  the country. 

Mr. Edwards: I f  final offer selection were to be repealed 
pr ior to  your contract comi n g  up in  May of th is  year, 
i t  has been suggested by M r. Smith ,  and I th in k M r. 
M itchel l  has made th is  argument as well ,  that some 
amendment to the present legislation would be require d  
to a l low you to access f ina l  offer select ion .  I have read 
your provisions which you have very k ind ly provided 
to us. 

( M r. Chairman in the Chair)  

I note that i t  d oes say, with respect to f inal  offer 
selection ,  that the parties agree t h at in the event either 
party invokes final offer selec t i o n ,  i n  accordance with 
the provisions of The M an i t o b a  Labour Relat ions Act. 
I fra n k ly do not u n d e rstand w h at amendment i n  t h e  
l abour  relat ions Act  would  help y o u  u s e  f i n a l  offer 
select i o n  if the provisions had been repeale d .  That 
arg u ment has been made,  t h at an amend ment could 
somehow al low you to continue going to f inal  offer 
select i o n .  is  t here any way you see t h at as possi ble? 
Is  t h e r e  a n  a m e n d m e n t  w e  c o u i d  a t t a c h  to t h i s  
legislat ion ,  w h i c h  m i g h t  al low you to use f inal  offer 
select ion? 
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I f ra n k ly d o  n ot see it on t h e  w or d i n g  of t h e  
agreement ,  b u t  m aybe you can en l ighten me. 

Mr. Zieg ler: I d o  not see any amendment d irectly that 
woul d  help us .  11 the legislat ion is gone, it is gone. 
Clearly that is  the p rerequ isite. If there was some way 
you could strike d own the l im its the company put in 
the contract , about saying that someone cannot opt 
out ,  o r  provisions of the legislat ion, and if  they, no 
m atter what their  contract says, h ave fu l l  access to the 
legislat ion ,  that woul d  be an improvement.  

There are other i m p rovements I wou l d  l i ke to see 
with moving that 30- to 60-day window l ater, because 
you mentioned in one of your comments that q u ite 
commonly negotiat ions go beyond the expirat ion and 
therefore !he on ly  opt ion woul d  be a str ike.  So if  you 
want  t o  m a k e  an a m e n d m e n t ,  ! et us move t h e  
appl icat ion ,  t h e  first win d ow later o n ,  c lose it  r ight u p  
t o  t h e  day o f  t h e  expiration o f  !he contract or  even 
later. 

Mr. Edwards: l am sorry, ! d id  not mean to cut off the 
p resenter. With respect, i f  the f inal  offer selection  
provis ions as they exist were repealed , woul d  there be 
some fal l-back? I s  there anyth ing i n  this col lective 
agreement which we have not seen which wou l d  put  
you back into a f inal  offer selection scenar io p re- 1 986, 
and are  there any fa l l - b ac k  f i n a l  offer s e l e ct i o n  
provisions i n  t h e  co l lective agreement that w e  h ave not 
seen? 

Mr. Zieg ler: I f  the  legislat ion is gone, then t here is  
noth ing i n  the contract, t here i s  noth i n g - any s ide 
agreement, there is  no-it  is  gone,  and we wi l l  probably 
be o n  strike this year. 

* ( 1 1 40)  

Mr. Edwards: i t  might  i nterest you , and I just raise 
t h i s ,  t h at i t  was my i m p ress ion f r o m  M r. S m i t h ' s  
comments, that he  was seeking  a n  amendment a n d  I 
have to look back to h is  p resentat ion .  I d o  not have 
it in f r o n t  o f  me r i g h t  n ow. He was seek i n g  a n  
amendment in  order t o  preserve the f inal offer selection 
for th is coming round of negotiat ions and he was 
extremely concerned , as I th ink  M r. M itchel l  was, that 
a repeal would n ot a l low f inal offer selection  to be used 
in  your workplace i n  th is coming negotiat ion. N ow, those 
are his words, not just said, I th ink ,  spur iously, but he 
came to th is committee and I bel ieve put  i t  on  the 
record that he  wanted an amen dment to ensure that 
f inal  offer selection cou l d  be u sed . Do you k n ow what 
he was ta lk ing about? 

Mr. Zieg ler: i th ink I k n ow what he was tal k i n g  about ,  
but it was not what it  sounded l ike, i f  you k n ow what 
that means.  H e  was talk ing about - i t  is  cal led double 
tal k .  1 1  M r. Andy Smith wants to make sure !here i s  
f i na l  offer selection i n  th is  contract, g ive me an hour, 
I wi l l  d raft u p  the word ing ,  and the two parties can 
sign it  today. They d o  not need the legis lat ion.  I wi l l  
d raft it up ,  I w i l l  take our  1 983 wording ,  I w i l l  retype 
it ,  he puts his signature on one side of the page, I put  
my signature or  Bernard Christophe puts h is  signature 
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on the other page, and yes, i f  he is serious, that is al l  
we need . We d o  not need the legislation amended. 
Double talk.  

M r. Edwards: I g uess the only other thing which 
concerns me !hen is that th is letter you have provided 
to  us  is  dated October 3 ,  1 987.  am n ot positive - !  
woul d  want t o  speak t o  M r. Smith again - as t o  whether 
or  not tha! is the only ietter. I appreciate that you h ave 
brought this letter forward , suggesting that it  is the 
letter M r. Smith  referred to. I also appreciate the fact 
that you said M r. Evans has told you that th is is the 
only letter of th is  sort d iscussing f inal  offer select ion ,  
and i wi l l ,  q uite frank ly, i f  l can in  the very near future, 
attempt to p u rsue this with Westfai r  and determine if  
there i s  another letter, because I wou l d  l ike,  i f  at al l  
possib le-and l th ink you wou l d  agree-for us  as 
legis lators to ensure that f inal  offer selection can be 
used, assuming that that was the spir it  of the agreement 
i n  1 987,  a lbeit repeal ing the legislation as a whole. Then 
we wil l certain ly  want to consider that, and I th ink  the 
M i nister woul d  as wel l  i f  that was i ndeed the spirit and 
i n te n t  o f  t h e  agreement .  B u t  we do n ee d  s o m e  
c larif icat ion.  

I also make the point that,  whi le obviously these 
hearings have been dominated by Westfair Foods i n  
terms o f  presentat ions from ind ividuals w h o  work t here 
and yourself and M r. Smith ,  and we appreciate hearing 
about th is relat ionship as one which we can learn fro m ,  
we a r e  here obviously deal ing w i t h  legislat ion which 
covers  every wor k p l ace  in t h i s  p ro v i n c e ,  every 
w o r k p l ace u n d e r  the j u r i sd ic t ion  of  the p r ov i n c i a l  
G overnment,  and s o  I am very cautious n o t  to g ive too 
much weight to one part icular relat ionship,  a lbeit i t  i s  
one we can  learn f rom,  but there are  many hundreds 
of others, and I s imply bring that to your attent ion.  

M r. Z iegler: You probably h i t  part of the na i l  on the 
head . 1 1  has been dominated by Westfair members 
because they are the most recently affected . I f  you held 
th is  committee after the Burns str ike,  i f  you held i t  after 
G riff in Steel , i f  you held it  in A lberta after Gainers, you 
would have those people, but the reason you do not 
h ave them is  that i t  has not occurred . But d o  not th ink  
for  a m o ment that it wi l l  not  again i f  th is  legislation i s  
gone.  

M r. Edwards: I w i l l  just  make one comment.  M y  fr iend 
from Thompson h as ind icated that he went d own i nto  
the trenches,  as i t  were, and spoke to Westfair  workers. 
I k n ow a lot of Westfair workers. I also took the 
opportunity to drop by the store at  Kenaston and Grant, 
and, just for your i nformat ion ,  I spoke to  the f irst e ight  
people that I came across who were work ing at  that 
store. 

You might  be i nterested to know-and I do not 
d ispute that there are many who have come here with 
very serious and high levels of emotion about this issue, 
and I d o  not doubt their s incerity-that, out of the 
eight, f ive had no idea of what final offer selection was. 
One knew what it was and l iked it, one knew what it 
was and expressed no opin ion,  and the eighth knew 
what it was and said that he d i d  not l i ke i t .  Out of 
e ight ,  one person knew what it was and d i d  not l i ke 
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it. I appreciate that probably those may have been 
employees who have not been there since the strike. 
I appreciate that. I just hit the first eight. I did not ask 
how long they had been there. I am cautious in looking 
at this particular incident and attempting to legislate 
specifically for it. I appreciate that is not what you are 
asking us to do, and you have said that if it is not 
Burns, it is Griffin Steel, it is other instances around 
the province. 

I do appreciate your coming forward, if for nothing 
else, for me anyway, than giving us some clarification 
on this relationship, given that we have had an 
amendment requested of us. 

Mr. Ziegler: With regard to your eight people, I am 
not sure if you were in the room or not when I mentioned 
about the 2,500 people who have turned over since 
the strike. Of the 1,500 people who work at Supervalu, 
over half are brand new. They were not there when the 
strike was on; 785 employees who presently work there 
have been hired since the strike. The people who have 
been there longer, a great number of them, the company 
wants to get rid of them and schedules them the bad 
shifts, whatever. 

The only group that we really have full time is the 
night crew, which you would not have spoken to. Those 
are the ones who have been around longer. In the bakery 
and the meats, that is where the full-time jobs are. 
Basically, if you are a woman, you are not going to get 
a full-time at Supervalu. You have to be a meat cutter, 
a baker, or the night crew. That is where the full-time 
jobs are. I am sure out of the eight you probably had 
six new people, and that is probably also indicative of 
what I said of the other people who have not gone 
through it yet and do not know about it. That does not 
mean that this legislation cannot help them. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you , Mr. Ziegler. Are there any 
more questions? Then we will thank you very much for 
your presentation. 

Mr. Ziegler: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Chairman: What is the will of the committee? It 
is 15 minutes to 12. Did you want to rise, or did you 
want to listen to-we have another presenter here. Let 
us go ahead then. Mrs. Jan Malanowich. 

Mrs. Jan Malanowich (Private Citizen): Good 
morning.- (interjection)-

Mr. Chairman: She is No. 12 on the list. Go ahead, 
please. Do you have a written submission? 

Mrs. Malanowich: No, I am sorry I do not. I am here 
as a private citizen, and I just want to talk to you about 
final offer selection and what I believe to be, not 
necessarily the ultimate, but close to the ultimate to 
prevent strikes, lockouts, and a variety of other negative 
things that can happen in the workplace during 
negotiations. 

I am going to refer to some things in The Pas. I have 
lived in The Pas for 17 years and just recently 
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transferred down to Winnipeg. When Mr. Ziegler was 
talking about Westfair, we in fact were involved in some 
of the Western Grocers problems up in The Pas. I belong 
to the labour movement and was quite active in the 
labour movement in The Pas. We saw the detrimental 
kinds of things that took place with the Western Grocers 
strike. We were there as the support mechanism. We 
saw the loss of wages, the loss of productivity with the 
company. It quite surprises me that companies do not 
comprehend what they are going to lose when a strike 
takes place, specifically in a small community. In a small 
community, you are all neighbours; you are all friends. 
It pits worker against friendship; it pits management 
against worker. It pits everybody against the business 
community as a whole if they in fact support the struck 
employer. 

* (1150) 

What we could relate to were the things that 
happened during that strike when we, as a labour body, 
went to the various grocery stores that were utilizing 
Western Grocers and asked them to please not support 
Western Grocers at th is point in time. We know that 
as a total business community, yes, we should be using 
them. But they had to evaluate what was happening 
to the workers and the reasons the workers were out 
on strike. 

As a result , we had one of our major grocery store 
owners agree that he would transport all his produce 
and products in from Winnipeg himself. He was very 
supportive of the workers. Why was he supportive of 
the workers? Who actually put the money into his 
business? The Town of The Pas, I think if we took a 
look at it, we probably have close to 75 percent of the 
population there unionized. With increases in wages, 
with good benefit packages, the money ultimately goes 
back into the community. 

With a strike action, the money is taken out of the 
community. The hostilities prevail. He was prepared to 
support the workers. He is not a unionized employer, 
by the way. He has probably avoided that. He pays 
good benefits to his employees, and they are not 
prepared to unionize at this point in time. But I will tell 
you, if he was not such a fair employer, it would probably 
take no time at all for them to decide to be unionized. 

So I looked at this kind of strike, and if FOS had 
been in place at the time that this strike took place, 
it could ult imately have eliminated a number of things 
that happened in the community, the unrest that took 
place and just the negative feeling in a small community. 
I mean, the paper headlines, everything else stops dead, 
and the strike issue is on the front page. Not on the 
front page from the perspective of the employer, mind 
you. I mean, the employer is good and fine and 
wonderful. The employees become the scapegoats in 
any strike action. I think that is terribly unfair. 

I just look at a recent thing that took place in The 
Pas. Now mind you , I was down here wh en t hi s 
happened, and it was the lockout at the Wescana Inn. 
If any of you have been in The Pas, we have a few 
places that are considered comparable hotels, the 
Wescana being one of them. It has been unionized by 
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the International  Woodworkers of Canada for a n u m ber 
ol  years . The e m p l oyer d e c i d e d  to l o c k  o u t  t h e  
employees just pr ior  to  C hristmas, a n d  t h e  t hreat was, 
look at w h at we are going to do for you, b oys and g ir ls .  
You are n ot g o i n g  to b e  get t i n g  any m o n ey for 
Christmas, and you are going to have to starve to  death.  
Talk  about Scrooge City. That i s  exactly what he was 
i m ply ing with that lockout.  

The u l t imate was that the whole community stood 
behi n d  the employees, to  the negative feel ings of the 
owners of the p l ace, Evans and Mardeen Premachu k .  
They could not bel ieve t h e  community h a d  s u c h  stron g  
support !or t h e  workers that worked a t  t h e  Wescana. 
People refused to  g o  t here and eat People refused to 
go  t here and take rooms.  The airport bus refused to 
cross the  picket l i ne.  As a result ,  s ince the l ockout has 
ceased , the bus can no longer even pul l  on  the property 
of the Wescana. They wil l not a l low them because they 
supported the workers. 

mean, that is  totally l ud icrous. They are provid ing  
a service of br ing ing  the cl ientele to  the h otel , and now 
they  are  forbidden to d o  that .  The  taxis were t reated 
with t h e  same respect . One firm in The Pas crossed 
the l i ne .  So the employees were to ld ,  after the lockout 
was over, d o  not dare cal l  any other taxi i f  someone 
asks for a taxi; you must cal l  !h is  part icular company, 
because th is  other one woul d  not cross the l ine.  

Now, th is  is  total ly l u dicrous. These th ings i n  a smal l  
commun ity d o  more harm than good . I just cann ot see 
that the Government is not prepared in th is  d ay to 
enforce some legislation that wil l  make it a positive 
experience for negotiat ing.  l t  is  good for both s ides.  
l t  i s  not just a win-al l  s ituat ion.  l t  i s  good for both.  I f  
you happen to get a s ituat ion where people get to 
l o g g erheads,  perhaps i t  i s  even persona l i t ies that 
become i nvolved- !  d o  not k now. Quite often , frank ly, 
I th ink  that is what it is .  I th ink  it is personal ities. 

People then get to a point  where n o  matter how long 
you g ive them, they do not want to  reach a settlement 
Final offer is  the alternative that we need . We need it 
as a strong legislat ion.  We need i t  for the working men 
and women. J ust looking at the people from S uperValu ,  
my God,  d o  they need i t?  M r. Ziegler was r ight Look 
at a l l  the single parents we have over there. I n  this day 
and age - 1  used to  work as an economic secur ity 
counsel lor. I d id that for eight years. I te l l  you, even 
o n  part-time wages, these people are having one hel l  
of a t ime making ends meet. I f  they go on str ike there 
is  absolutely no way they are going to be able to meet 
the commitments. We are going to have people back 
on the welfare rol l .  We are just creat ing such a negative 
atmosphere that it  appalls me. 

Popping back to the pie issue again and the lockout, 
d o  you know what surprised me? The Chamber of 
Commerce i n  The Pas refused to cross the l ine.  They 
refused to hold their meetings in  the Wescana. I te l l  
you, that was an eye opener to the owners of the 
Wescana Inn.  They could not bel ieve that the business 
community showed such strong support for the workers. 
We talk about neigh bourhoods and working together­
Trappers Festival , a wel l -renowned festival .  

They have ut i l ized the Wescana Inn to put entertainers 
up, to ho ld  the casinos, to just d o  a variety of t hings.  
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Wel l ,  th is year they were basical ly to ld t hey could not 
even go  near the p lace. Do not even touch us  with a 
1 0-foot pole.  011,  that is good commun ity morale, and 
i t  showed . I was u p  t here and I was appal led . So ! 
guess I am going to leave you with th is  thought ,  that 
someth ing has to be done, and something has to be 
done that g ives us strong,  strong legis lat ion, and I am 
asking  you to ensure that we have f inal  offer selection 
on the books for the protection of the labour movement 
and the employer, because it is  go ing to solve some 
p roblems for both sides. Thank you very much.  

Mr. Ashton: I am very p leased to see you here, by the 
way, to g ive the northern perspective, because I k now 
the many years you have spent in the North.  i t  is 
i nterest ing because when you mentioned The Pas i t  
coul d  have just as easi ly been Thompson.  Westfa i r  
Foods, one of the stores they d i d  not open was in  
Thompson and I know why, because people, whether 
they are members of a union or not members o! a 
un ion ,  and in a lot of cases the employers wou l d  not 
h ave crossed that p icket l ine, i t  i s  just not d one. 

You ment ioned about hotel strikes. We had a hotel 
str ike a few years ago and i t  was virtually shut down 
because people just would not cross the p icket l i nes, 
to  go  to the vendors, to g o  to the p u b .  l t  is  a d i fferent  
sort of situation that you are i n  a lthough i t  can sti l l  be 
p retty tough on a community, even with that level of 
support. l t  can create a lot of problems. lnco is  the 
same. There has not been an l n co strike yet where 
l nco has h i red str ikebreakers, certa in ly i n  Thompson, 
and yet i t  has a lot of pressure on communities. 

You mentioned the hotel strike. I was just wonder ing ,  
i n  the years you were i n  The Pas, h ow many, just roughly, 
how many strikes that would  h ave occurred in the 
commun ity over that per iod of t ime? 

Mrs. Malanowich: As I say, I can th ink  of the Western 
G rocers one. I know that there were a couple with the 
mi l l .  That was when I first moved up to The Pas,  and 
we have not seen a lot of that i n  the last whi le .  The 
correct ional officers went on str ike for a period of t ime. 
The Canada Manpower people-the Post Office people 
went on  strike; we supported their str ike. CN had strike 
issues. I do not know whether I can think of any more 
r ight off the top of my head or not .  

Mr. Ashton: l t  must have been a fa ir ly extensive 
n u mber; this is a fair ly small community. Thompson is 
really in the same way, relatively speaking .  Dur ing that 
period there were a fairly s ignif icant n u m ber of strikes 
i n  that community. 

* ( 1 200) 

Mrs. Malanowich: Yes,  I did not mention the hospital 
either because they have had a couple or  three with 
the lab techs. There was a lmost a strike with MONA.  
We were preparing for  that. Th ings that  you must realize 
in a smal l  community, you have a labour component 
that is  there as a support mechanism and a help ing 
hand to any group that i s  faced with th is  k ind  of 
problem. 

Mr. Ashton: I !  is  i nterest ing ,  you talk once again for 
the northern perspective. I h ave raised th is  q uestion 
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with people before the committee, and I know in my 
own area I have yet to run across anyone really who 
wants to get rid of final offer selection. Most people 
either are not aware of the provisions, but certainly are 
not calling for it being repealed. The people I have 
talked to, when you explain the provisions to them, 
support it. Now when I say the people, I am not just 
talking about people who have been through strikes 
or people generally. I am not just talking about union 
members. I am talking about people in the community. 

I just want to talk to you in terms of your perspective 
as a former-I realize you have since moved south, 
but I am sure you must keep contacts still in terms of 
The Pas. In a community like The Pas, do you sense 
anyone really out there wanting the Government to ram 
through this legislation and get rid of final offer 
selection? 

Mrs. Malanowich: No, I do not. If anything, I see it 
going the other way, that they would be more than 
happy to have good, strong legislation that could 
alleviate some of the strain that is placed on workers 
and management. 

Mr. Ashton: I certainly appreciate your comments. 
know it is very difficult in terms of getting the northern 
perspective. It is very difficult to travel here, and I think 
we sometimes have to honour people such as yourself 
who have lived in the north for a considerable period 
of time, who now live in the south-I know I still have 
contact with many former constituents who now live 
in more southern areas; I know one is very familiar to 
you, Mr. Chairperson-who can speak directly. It is a 
bit more easy for them to speak directly than people 
in the community, so I thank you fo r coming forward 
and representing the northern perspective very well. 

Mrs. Malanowich: Thank you very much. 

Ms. Judy Wasylycia-Leis (St. Johns): I also want to 
thank you very much for coming forward and bringing 
your perspective to this issue as a working person, but 
particularly as a woman , and I think you have really 
focused in on the importance of final offer selection, 
particularly for women and families. 

I would like you to-since we have here today the 
Minister responsible for the Status of Women (Mrs. 
Hammond) and the Minister responsible for Family 
Services (Mrs. Oleson), albeit they are members of the 
Conservative Government, which has been fairly 
obstinate in terms of this issue and seems to be intent 
on repealing this very important piece of legislation­
but I am wondering if you could just-maybe there is 
a chance we can perhaps persuade them otherwise if 
you could address the importance of final offer selection 
from the point of view of women and women's equality 
and the point of view of families and keeping fami lies 
together and quality of life for families and communities 
while we have those two Ministers here so that perhaps 
we can advance a bit on this issue. 

Mrs. Malanowich: I will certainly try. I just want to 
start back at the time when I actually worked for the 
Government in Economic Security, and I am going to 
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look at it from that perspective. Many times I had 
clientele come into my office, not because they wanted 
to be there, but because they were forced to be there. 
There was absolutely nowhere for them to go. They 
were earning minimum wage, which certainly did not 
meet the needs of raising children. At that point in time 
they were probably not successful with getting 
maintenance payments from the spouse, or maybe there 
was no spouse around . Maybe they were just single 
parents now left to their own demise. 

You would encourage them to go out and find 
employment. You would encourage them and tell them 
that they would probably still be eligible for benefits 
under the program, under the working program that 
we had at that point in economic security. They would 
go out there. If they were fortunate in finding a job 
over minimum wage, nine times out of 10 that job was 
in a place where there was a union. They not only 
gained monetary benefits in the sense of a pay cheque 
that earned them more money; they in turn gained 
benefits such as dental care, vision care, sick days, 
good vacation benefits, a number of things they would 
never have seen in private enterprise. 

I would encourage these people to do everything in 
their power to get out there. Some of them did not 
have the capabilities of doing that, so it has been a 
struggle for them. They may have had to turn around 
and go back to school. In going back to school, not 
only did they have to go back to school themselves, 
their children were probably in schools. If they were 
not in schools, they were looking for proper day care. 
All these things ended up being the big nucleus of how 
they were going to make themselves more productive 
and happier with their own well-being. They felt that 
they were doing something for themselves. 

I think that through the things that we can do through 
negotiations we can help these women see a better 
life. I will tell you, there are far too many of them out 
there with part-time jobs, not because they want part­
time jobs but because that is the only employment they 
can find. 

I tried to put my family on a welfare budget to see 
if we could live, and quite frankly, it was scary. There 
was no way that I could even adjust myself to having 
to live within the confines of that minimum amount of 
money. So I look now at these women who are trying 
to increase that earning power, and in increasing it 
have a good, sound place in the community, be able 
to participate in a variety of things that are community­
minded, not be afraid that they are not going to be 
able to make the rent payment , be in a position to be 
able to go out and get a mortgage on their own, so 
be it if they have got the capabilities, the skills and 
the kind of job that will allow them that. 

We are seeing more of it, but we are not seeing 
enough of it. Women are still majorly at the bottom of 
the earning potential. Pay equity throughout the 
government has helped, but there is still a lot of room 
for improvement. I think you should think about how 
it will affect not only women, though-this is not just 
a women-man situation. This is a joint situation. I think 
you have to take everything into consideration when 
you are dealing with this specific legislation, but it is 
important for FOS, definitely. 
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Ms. Wasylycia-leis: So what you are really  saying i s  
that fin al offer select ion ,  because i t  is  a n e w  way to 
!he way of  prolonged strikes or lockouts or other labour 
d ispute resolut ion mechanisms, actual ly keeps people 
from h aving to fal l  back on welfare, and therefore h as 
the potential  for keeping  down costs in that area to  
Government and to taxpayers as a whole.  I s  that what 
you are saying,  in part? 

Mrs. Malanowich: Yes, that is  what I am saying .  I t h i n k  
that the  circle c a n  go  aroun d .  You c a n  e l im inate a l o t  
o f  the hardships by putt ing legis lat ion i n  place t h a t  w i l l  
assist i n  a l leviat ing strikes. 

Ms. Wasy!ycia-leis: i am p leased that you focused i n  
on thal,  n o t  on ly because w e  h ave t h e  two M i n i sters 
here that I mentioned, but  also the Liberal Cr it ic for 
Economic Security. He has said that he  is  concerned 
about the whole issue ol sociai assistance and gett ing  
peop le  off o f  welfare. I t h i nk  you have made the case 
very wel i ,  and I h ope that message is  gett ing throu g h .  

J u s t  a f i n a l  q uestion w h i c h ,  if I c a n  t r y  to s u m marize 
in terms of your theme and presentation and just get 
your final comments on i t ,  i t  seems to me that what 
you are saying is that support for f inal offer select ion 
is coming from many groups i n  our society, f rom working  
people everywhere, because i t  i s  i n  a way a n ew 
approach that lends itself more to co-operat ion ,  to 
conci l iat ion,  to compassionate so lut ions ,  rather than 
the o ld way of confl ict and long,  prolonged , d rawn-out 
str ikes or  lockouts, and that i n  fact th is  new approach 
is  someth ing that wil l have to shape our society in the  
future and part icular ly shape labour  relat ions,  no! 
b e c a u s e  it is s o m et h i n g  t h at w i l l  g i ve an u nf a i r  
advantage to workers, or  n o t  i n  terms o f  attracting  o r  
keeping competit ive business i n  t h i s  province, but  
because il i s  a new way t h at society has to come to 
grips with and must be a model for a l l  aspects of our 
society. Can you elaborate a b i t  on that and wrap up 
our, my comments anyway? 
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Mrs. Malanowich: I agree with what you are saying .  
Confl ict is  not the answer to sett lement.  i t  never has 
been , and it never wi l l  be.  l see th is  as being an area 
in which Government can act responsib ly to ensure 
t hat kind of confl ict is  e l im inated . Sure you are going 
to have some d isagreements at the table; t hat is the 
way bargain ing  goes.  But there certain ly  i s  an avenue 
wi th  th is  t h at can e l i m inate the b r u t a l i ty and t h e  
negativism that is  i mposed , again I w i l i  say i t ,  qn the 
workers, because all the negat ives seem to go to  
workers. The employer always seems to be u p  here on  
a pedestal dur ing  any  str ike act ion ,  and i t  takes two 
at the bargain ing table to reach a sett lement,  not just 
one s ide,  and there has to be g ive and take. This can 
be done i n  a non-confl ict ing manner, but if  people are 
not ready to reach that sett lement in that fashion , 
someth ing  has to be done to ensure that that is carried 
through i n  a non-confl ict ing manner and that can be 
done by f inal  offer. 

M r. Chairman: Thank you very much .  M r. Rose. 

M r. Bob Rose (St . Vital):  M r. Chairman, we h ave no 
q uest ions,  but we woul d  l i ke  to sincerely thank M rs. 
M alanowich for sharing her experiences with us  today. 
I appreciate it very much ,  your coming d own. 

* ( 1 2 1 0) 

Mr. C hairman: Okay, thank you very much.  Just pr ior 
to  r is ing for the morning, I would l ike to remind 
committee Members and members of the  publ ic  that 
the committee wi l l  be also meet ing th is  evening,  March 
6 ,  at 8 p . m .  

The t ime is  n o w  1 2 . 1 0  p .m .  What is  the w i l l  o f  t h e  
committee? Committee r ise. 

COMMITTEE ROSE AT: 1 2 : 1 0  p .m .  




